
Morgan County, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, provides accommodations and auxiliary communicative 
aids and services for all those citizens in need of assistance. Persons requesting these accommodations should call Keryl Squires 
at 801-845-4015, giving at least 24 hours notice prior to the meeting.  A packet containing supporting materials is available for 
public review prior to the meeting at the Planning and Development Services Dept. and will also be provided at the meeting.  
Note: Effort will be made to follow the agenda as outlined, but agenda items may be discussed out of order as circumstances 
may require.  If you are interested in a particular agenda item, attendance is suggested from the beginning of meeting.      
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA  

Thursday, August 8, 2013 

Morgan County Council Room 

6:30 PM 

 
 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that the Morgan County Planning Commission will meet at 

the above time and date at the Morgan County Courthouse, Council Chambers, 48 West Young 

St, Morgan, Utah. The agenda is as follows: 

 

1. Call to order – prayer. 

2. Approval of agenda. 

3. Declaration of conflicts of interest. 

4. Public Comment 

 

Administrative Items 

5. Discussion/Decision:  Tifie Ranch Conditional Use Permit  

6. Discussion/Decision:  Little Horn Subdivision 

7. Discussion/Decision:  Rollins Ranch Phase 4a 

8. Discussion/Decision:  Rollins Ranch Phase 4b 

9. Discussion/Decision:  Rollins Ranch Phase 5 

10. Discussion/Decision:  Rollins Ranch Phase 6 

11. Discussion:  Flexible Subdivision Survey Results 

 

Legislative Items 

12. Discussion/Decision:  Flexible Subdivision Non-Conforming Lot Ordinance 

 

13. Staff Report.  

14. Approval of minutes from June 27, 2013 

15. Adjourn. 

 

 

 



 
Planning and Development Services 

 
Tifie Ranch Ground Mounted Solar Array Conditional Use Permit 1 
App. # 13.061 
July 26, 2013 

 
48 West Young Street 
Morgan, UT  84050 

(801) 845-4015    
 

STAFF REPORT 
July 26, 2013

 
To: Morgan County Planning Commission 

Business Date:  August 8, 2013 
 

Prepared By: Ronda Kippen, Planning Technician 
 
Re: Tifie Ranch Ground Mounted Solar Array Conditional Use Permit Request 
Application No.: 13.061 
Applicant: Robert & Angie Workman 
Project Location: 6100 South Highway 66 
Zoning: MU-160 Zone 
Acreage: Property: 195.37 Acres; Limits of Disturbance: 0.07 Acres  
Request: Conditional Use Permit for construction of a solar photovoltaic array for the purpose 

of power generation to be used on site. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
This application is for a utility use in the MU-160 zone. Robert & Angie Workman desire to expand their 
renewable energy utility infrastructure by constructing an additional ground mounted solar array structure 
measuring 215’x14’x10’ (see Exhibit A). Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to 
conditional uses, utility uses and power generation in the MU-160 zone are all allowed by Conditional 
Use Permit. Conditional Use Permits are administrative actions and as such should be approved as long as 
harmful impact can be mitigated as provided for in adopted ordinances. The County Code already 
specifies certain standards necessary for mitigation of harmful impact to which the proposal must adhere. 
With the recommended conditions, the proposal appears to meet these standards. The following is staff’s 
evaluation of the request.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On April 17, 2007, Robert and Angie Workman received a Conditional Use Permit to construct a non-
commercial private recreation camp with cabins and a single family dwelling on portions of their property 
located in the MU-160 zone.  In December 2008, the Workman’s received approval for a Conditional Use 
Permit to construct up to 6 Wind Energy Conversion System towers and Solar Panels on their property in 
the MU-160 zone located Southwest of this proposed construction site.   
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Zoning.  The property is zoned MU-160 (see Exhibit B). The proposed improvements are determined 
to be an accessory structure or use, incidental to the main use of the property as a “Single Family 
Dwelling” or “Private park or recreational grounds, or private recreational camps or resorts, 



 

 
Tifie Ranch Ground Mounted Solar Array Conditional Use Permit 2 
App. # 13.061 
July 26, 2013 

including accessory or supporting dwellings or dwelling complexes, and commercial service uses 
which are owned or managed by the recreational facility to which it is accessory”, which are both 
conditionally permitted in the MU-160 zone.  Morgan County Code (MCC) 8-5A-3 also identifies this 
use as at least two other types of uses: “Power Generation” or “Public Facilities and Public Service 
Facilities”. In the MU-160 zone “utility” uses are defined under the umbrella definition of “Public 
Facilities and Public Service Facilities” which is defined as: 
 

For the public convenience, certain infrastructure, including streets, utilities and utility facilities, 
radio and television transmitting towers and stations, and facilities determined to be in the interest 
of the health, safety, and welfare of the public, such as police, fire, ambulance substations, and 
animal control facilities, may be allowed to serve various areas of the community as essential 
facilities. [Italics added] 
 

 
8-5A-3: USE REGULATIONS:  
 

No building, structure or land shall be used and no building or structure shall be hereafter 
erected, structurally altered, enlarged or maintained in the multiple use, agricultural or 
rural residential districts, except as provided in this article. 
 

   Districts    

MU-
160 

   

F-
1 
   

A-
20 
   

RR-
10    

RR-
5    

RR-
1    

Accessory buildings and uses customarily 
incidental to conditional uses    

C    C 
   

C    C    C    C    

Dwellings:    

   Recreation dwelling (shall not utilize the 
same minimum lot area as a main dwelling)    

C    C 
   

C    -    -    -    

   Single-family dwelling    C    -    P    P    P    P    

Power generation    C    -    C    C    -    -    

Private park or recreational grounds, or private 
recreational camps or resorts, including 
accessory or supporting dwellings or dwelling 
complexes, and commercial service uses which 
are owned or managed by the recreational 
facility to which it is accessory    

C    -    C    C    C    -    

Public facilities or public service facilities. 
Exception: Governmentally operated essential 
service facilities such as police, fire, ambulance 
substations, and animal control facilities    

C    C 
   

C    C    C    C    

 
 



 

 
Tifie Ranch Ground Mounted Solar Array Conditional Use Permit 3 
App. # 13.061 
July 26, 2013 

Site Conditions.  The ground mounted solar array is being proposed to be located along the Southeast 
boundary of a 195.37 acre parcel that is owned by the Tifie Ranch LLC. Land disturbance will be limited 
to approximately 0.07 acres.  
 
The proposed solar array is sited in a valley to the Southwest of Highway 66, Northwest of East Canyon 
Dam and is immediately adjacent to and surrounded by farmland/wildland. The 195.37 acre parcel meets 
the minimum 160 acre zoning requirement. (see Exhibit C) 
 
Setbacks.  Front yard setbacks in the MU-160 zone are 30 feet.  Side and rear setbacks for utility uses in 
the MU-160 zone are 15 feet. It appears the applicant will be able to meet all of the required setbacks. The 
applicant will be required to submit with a building permit application a detailed site plan identifying the 
construction location as well as all outbuildings and property lines.  Staff will ensure that all setbacks 
have been met at that time.   
 
Flood zone.  According to the site map provided in the application it appears that the proposal will be 
located in a Flood Zone X and is not located in any floodways (see Exhibit D). 

Fencing and screening

 MCC §8-6-37(E)(4) 

. MCC §8-6-18(D) requires areas with transformers, substations, pump and/or 
related generator facilities to be screened or fenced in accordance with MCC §8-6-37 which further states:  

4. Transformers, substations, transmission, pump and/or related generator facilities shall be fenced 
or screened with a sight obscuring fence or wall constructed of materials compatible with the 
principal buildings or architectural character of the surrounding neighborhood if located within a 
commercial or residential area or if located in an industrial, agricultural or open space area fenced 
for security purposes with a minimum of an open style fence. All such fences or walls shall be a 
minimum of six feet (6') in height. 

The proposed construction site provides natural screening which may mitigate the visual impact from the 
County Right of Way as well as adjacent property owners.  However, due to the semi-public nature of the 
Workman’s property, staff feels that a fence surrounding the proposed ground mounted solar array may 
be beneficial to protect the public safety and for security purposes.   

Roads and Access.  Access is being proposed from Highway 66 via an existing private improved 
driveway to the Workman’s property.   
 
Conditional Use Requirements.  

• Landscaping. The applicant has not proposed a revegetation and reseeding plan in accordance 
with MCC §8-8-4(C)(4), MCC §8-8-4(C)(5)  and MCC §8-8-7(F)(10)which states that: 

 
  MCC §8-8-4(C)(4) 

 4. The planting of ground cover or other surfacing to prevent dust and erosion. 
  a. The proposed land disturbing activity will ensure and provide an undisturbed 

 vegetation buffer from the top of the bank of a stream, wetland or other water 
 body, unless a mitigation plan is approved for alterations within the buffer area. 

  b. Whenever feasible, natural vegetation will be retained and protected. 
  c. Temporary vegetation and/or mulching shall be used to protect exposed 

 critical areas during development. 
  d. Plans will be made to accommodate increased runoff and sedimentation 

 caused by altered soil and surface conditions during and after the proposed 
 activity. 

 MCC §8-8-4(C)(5) 



 

 
Tifie Ranch Ground Mounted Solar Array Conditional Use Permit 4 
App. # 13.061 
July 26, 2013 

 5. Restructuring of the land and planting of the same as directed by the planning 
commission when the conditional use involves cutting and/or filling the land and where 
such land would be adversely affected if not restructured. 

MCC §8-8-7(F)(10) 
10. Erosion Control And Landscaping: All cut and fill surfaces created by grading, except 
for firebreak purposes, shall be planted with a ground cover that is compatible with the 
natural ground covers in the county. Topsoil is to be stockpiled during rough grading and 
used on cut and fill slopes… 

 
• Bond. MCC §8-8-4 authorizes the County to require a bond to ensure performance with approved 

plans. Given the private nature of this request and the minimal amount of land disturbance, 
bonding for the total cost of improvements may not be necessary. The public impact of this 
project is primarily aesthetic, with some implications on issues of erosion control. Staff 
recommends that the County requires a revegetation plan be submitted to the County however a 
bond for the improvements, fence and revegetation may not be necessary.   

• Environmental concerns. MCC §8-8-4(C)(13) allows for additional standards as may be 
established by the Planning Commission or County Council as they may deem necessary for the 
protection of the health, safety, convenience and general welfare of the present and future 
inhabitants of the county and the environment. 
 

General Plan. The 2010 General Plan has identified the desire by “Morgan County residence to maintain 
healthy natural systems as an investment in our future that supports our quality of life… Residents want 
to protect the environment and acknowledge the need to balance competing interests”.  (See 2010 General 
Plan page 42, Environment, Natural Resources and Preservation).   Staff feels the request conforms with 
the intent of the 2010 General Plan and will not have a negative impact on the future of Morgan County 
residence. 
 
Solar Equipment Review.  MCC §8-6-14 states that if it has been determined by the Planning Department 
that the application requires further review and approval by the Planning Commission and the County 
Council, the development shall be reviewed at a regularly scheduled meeting.  The proposed use has been 
determined to be conditionally allowed within the MU-160 zone and pursuant to MCC§ 8-3-9(H)(8)  
requires council approval after recommended by the Planning Commission; therefore the code requires 
the permit to be reviewed as it currently is.  The applicant shall provide the applicable information at the 
time of the meeting:  

• Site plan 
• Drawings showing existing building elevations 
• Landscaping and screening plans 
• The kind, color and texture of materials to be used 
• Any other pertinent information determined to be necessary by the County Planner.   

 
Fire Protection. The property is outside the Wildland Urban Interface Area. A fire protection plan, or 
other considerations as approved by the local fire official, will be required during the building permit 
process.  
 
 
NOTICING. Pursuant to MCC §8-3-13(I), a conditional use permit is a public comment item and requires 
certain noticing within 10 calendar days of the first public meeting. Further, pursuant to MCC 8-3-13(C) 
the following noticing requirements have been met for this application: 
 

C. Notice To Third Parties: For site specific land use applications which require a public hearing 
or public comment, the county shall mail notice to the record owner of each parcel within a one 
thousand foot (1,000') radius of the subject property, and the applicant shall post a sign on the 
property according to the following regulations:  



 

 
Tifie Ranch Ground Mounted Solar Array Conditional Use Permit 5 
App. # 13.061 
July 26, 2013 

 
1. Post a county provided sign along each street on which the subject property has frontage. If 

the subject property does not abut a street, then the sign should be posted on a nearby street as 
determined by the zoning administrator. Sign shall be of sufficient size, durability, print 
quality and location that it is reasonably calculated to give notice to those passing by. It shall 
be the responsibility of the applicant to remove and dispose of the sign(s) within five (5) 
calendar days after the final hearing or meeting regarding the application. Third party 
property owners who live within the one thousand foot (1,000') radius but outside of Morgan 
County boundaries shall be sent notice equivalent to that sent to property owners within 
Morgan County. 

 
2. The applicant shall submit a signed affidavit of public posting. 

 
3. The affidavit shall include a photograph verifying that the sign has been installed, at least ten 

(10) days prior to the required public hearing or meeting. 
 

4. Failure to post the public notice sign and provide the required verification at least ten (10) 
days prior to the required public hearing will cause a delay in the processing of the 
application, to allow for the required public hearing notice. 

 
5. If the sign is destroyed or damaged the applicant shall replace the sign within twelve (12) 

hours upon being notified. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Tifie Ranch Ground Mounted Solar Array Conditional Use Permit for 
construction of a solar photovoltaic array for the purpose of power generation to be used on site, 
application 13.061, with the following conditions: 
 

1. That the applicant will apply for and receive a building permit prior to the commencement of 
construction.   

2. That the applicant will submit with the building permit application a detailed site plan 
indentifying the construction location as well as all outbuildings and property lines to ensure 
adequate setbacks.   

3. That a fire protection plan, or other considerations as approved by the local fire official, will be 
required during the building permit process.  

4. That a six foot fence will be constructed around to the ground mounted solar array to ensure 
public safety.   

5. That the solar array/panels are placed in such a manner that they are not visible from the public 
right of way and shall not reflect sunlight into the public right of way.   

6. That erosion control and revegetation plans will be submitted to the Morgan County Planning 
Department for review and approval by the Zoning Administrator.   

7. That the project adheres to all other local, state, and federal requirements.  
 
This recommendation is based on the following findings: 
 

1. That the request conforms to the 2010 Morgan County General Plan. 
2. That the request conforms to the requirements of the Morgan County Code. 
3. That the requested uses are conditionally allowed in the MU-160 zone. 
4. That with the proposed conditions, the proposal will mitigate potential detrimental effects it may 

cause to the public, particularly with respect to the dust and debris control.  
5. That a landscaping and planting plan is essential to mitigating the harmful effects of erosion, 

slope instability, and will mitigate the negative aesthetic effects of the hillside excavation.  
6. That a fence surrounding the proposed ground mounted solar array may be beneficial to protect 

the public safety and security purposes 



 

 
Tifie Ranch Ground Mounted Solar Array Conditional Use Permit 6 
App. # 13.061 
July 26, 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
MODEL MOTION   
 
Sample Motion for a Positive Recommendation – “I move we forward a positive recommendation to the 
County Council for the Tifie Ranch Ground Mounted Solar Array Conditional Use Permit for 
construction of a solar photovoltaic array for the purpose of power generation to be used on site, 
application 13.061, subject to the findings and conditions listed in the July 26, 2013 staff report, and as 
modified by the conditions and findings below:” 
 

1. List any additional findings and conditions… 
 
Sample Motion for a Negative Recommendation – “I move we forward a negative recommendation to the 
County Council for the Tifie Ranch Ground Mounted Solar Array Conditional Use Permit for 
construction of a solar photovoltaic array for the purpose of power generation to be used on site, 
application 13.061, subject to the following findings: 
 

1. List any additional findings… 
      

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Exhibit A: Applicant Narrative 
Exhibit B: Zoning Map. 
Exhibit C: Property Boundaries and Project Location. 
Exhibit D: Flood Map 
 



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



feet
km

4000
1

Exhibit B



feet
meters

3000
900

Exhibit C



feet
meters

3000
900

Exhibit D



 

 
Little Horn Final Plat 1 

Application #12.036 
Aug 2, 2013 

 

Planning and Development Services 
48 West Young Street 

Morgan, UT  84050 

(801) 845-4015    

 

STAFF REPORT 

August 2, 2013

 

To: Morgan County Planning Commission 

Business Date – August 8, 2013 

 

From: Charles Ewert, MPA, Planning and Development Services Director 

 

Re: Little Horn Subdivision Final Plat Request; an Amendment to the Denise 

Wasuita Minor Subdivision 

 

Application No.: 12.036 

Applicant: David and Mary Sadzewicz 

Location: Approximately 4660 W Old Highway Road 

Current Zoning: R1-20 and A-20 Zones  

Acreage: Approximately 1.648 acres (71,786.88 Sq. Ft.)  

Request: Final plat approval for a three lot standard subdivision, which will amend the 

existing Denise Wasuita Minor Subdivision.  

  
SUMMARY & BACKGROUND 
The applicant is seeking approval of a three lot subdivision. The three lots will completely plat over and 
amend the existing Denise Wasuita Minor Subdivision. The property currently has one single family 
dwelling unit on it, and the subdivision has been planned to preserve the required setbacks of the zone for 
this structure. 
 
The request appears to meet the requirements of the zoning ordinance and the subdivision ordinance, and 
staff are recommending approval with the conditions listed herein. Staff’s evaluation of the request is as 
follows:  
 

ANALYSIS 

 

General Plan and Zoning. The subject property is located at the intersection of Old Highway Road and 

Powder Horn Road in the Mountain Green Area of unincorporated Morgan County. The 2010 Morgan 

County General Plan has designated this area as a maximum of 3 dwelling units per acre (DUA) area
1
, 

which is considered a Village Residential designation. The purpose of the Village Residential designation 

is
2
: 

 
The Village Residential category designation provides for a combination of single family 
attached and detached dwellings, townhomes, and duplexes. Substantial common open 
space for visual relief and recreation amenities would serve residents. This designation is 

                                                 
1
 See Exhibit A for the future land use map of the area 

2
 See 2010 Morgan County General Plan 



 

 
Little Horn Final Plat 2 

Application #12.036 
Aug 2, 2013 

currently found in the Mountain Green area with designated densities of up to 4 units per 
acre, and is appropriate for established village areas with infrastructure to support the 
uses. 

 

 

 

The proposal is in compliance with the general plan by providing density under this limit.  

 

The current zoning designations on the property are R1-20 and A-20. There are approximately 1.53 acres 

of the 1.65 acre property in the R1-20 zone. There are approximately 0.12 acres in the A-20 zone. The A-

20 zoning designation appears to be an unintended gap from the legal description of previous zone 

changes in the area
3
. 

 

The purpose of the R1-20 zone are
4
: 

 
To provide areas for very low density, single-family residential neighborhoods of spacious 
and uncrowded character. 

 

The purpose of the A-20 zone are
5
: 

 
Agriculture Districts: The purposes of providing an agriculture district are to promote and 
preserve in appropriate areas conditions favorable to agriculture and to maintain 
greenbelt spaces. These districts are intended to include activities normally and 
necessarily related to the conduct of agriculture and to protect the district from the 
intrusion of uses inimical to the continuance of agricultural activity. 

The proposal is incompliance with these purpose statements.  

The purpose statements in the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance do not provide actual development 

regulations, but present the zoning context in which the proposed subdivision is located.  The specific 

regulations found in the adopted County Code govern development of the subject property. 

Layout.  The Little Horn Subdivision is three lots in a triangular shape at the intersection of Powderhorn 

Road and Old Highway Road
6
. Each lot is a little over a half acre of land. There is currently a home one 

the proposed lot 1. The proposed lot lines appear to present that the new lot conforms to existing R1-20 

standards for lots, including setbacks and coverage.  

 

Roads and Access.  Old Highway Road will serve as access to the existing residence on lot 1, with no 

changes from what is in existence today. Access to lot three will be restricted off of Old Highway Road, 

and will only be allowed on Powderhorn Road. Powderhorn Road will also serve as access to lot two.  

 

The applicant is being required to extend the curb, gutter, and sidewalk that was installed as a condition 

for the Rollins Ranch Development along the southern boundary of Powderhorn Road for the full extent 

of the property. He will also install 2.5’ of asphalt along Old Highway Road.  

 

Previous Platting. The property was originally divided as the Denise Wasuita Minor Subdivision
7
.  

                                                 
3
 See Exhibit B for a zoning map of the area 

4
 MCC §8-5B-1 

5
 MCC §8-5A-1 

6
 See Exhibit D for a copy of the final plat and prelim plat (construction drawings) with staff’s bluelines 

7
 See Exhibit C for a graphic depiction of the Denise Wasuita Minor Subdivision 



 

 
Little Horn Final Plat 3 

Application #12.036 
Aug 2, 2013 

 

Grading and land disturbance.  The land has a gradual positive grade from Old Highway Road extending 

back toward Powderhorn. Minor grading of the lots can be expected, but none so much that it will trigger 

the excavation review thresholds. Any land owner choosing to re-grade the resulting lots may need 

additional review and engineering of the proposal at that time.  

 

County Engineer.  The County Engineer has reviewed the proposal and is recommending approval with 

the conditions proposed herein. 

 

Surveyor.  The County Surveyor has reviewed the proposal and is recommending approval with the 

conditions proposed herein. 

 

Fire Chief. The County Fire Chief has discussed the proposal and is recommending approval with the 

conditions proposed herein. 

 

Sensitive Areas, Geology, and Geotechnical Considerations.  The geologic units for the area are Qal and 

Qa[p]. neither are listed as hazardous areas. A geotechnical study was provided for the proposal that did 

not return results that merit further considerations herein. The information therein will provide useful to 

the designing of future structures onsite.  

 

Utilities.  The County has received will serve letters from Rocky Mountain Power, Questar Gas, and 

Mountain Green Sewer Improvement District. Each were conditional letters of approval. The applicant 

should satisfy all relevant requirements of those entities, and approval of this application should be 

conditioned on such.  

 

Additional Considerations.  Staff have been provided with a document
8
 that appears to be a development 

contract entered into by one of the former owners of the property. It is for the financial compensation of 

the creation of Powderhorn Road (5800 North), and may be applicable to the lots two and three. Staff 

have not had time to review the document with the County Attorney to determine applicability, but 

recommend that if it is applicable that it be recorded against lots two and three and noted on the plat, so as 

to trigger payment of fees prior to building permit issuance. The applicant has been provided with a copy 

if the document, but was unaware of its existence.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission forward a positive recommendation to the County 

Council for the Little Horn Final Subdivision Plat, and amendment to the Denise Wasuita Minor 

Subdivision, application 12.036, subject to the following conditions:    

 

1. Please address all requested corrections on the bluelines attached to this report. 

2. Remove all references to “minor” subdivision from the plat. This is not a minor subdivision 

pursuant to Morgan County Code.  

3. The letter of approval from the sewer district is expired. Please submit an updated one. 

4. Inasmuch as it is being proposed to use details from the preliminary plat as the construction 

drawings for the project, please change the title of the preliminary plat to “Construction 

Drawings” and reference them on the final plat.  

5. That a signed notarized Public Improvements Agreement shall be required prior to final plat 

recording if public improvements are not installed/completed prior to plat recording, pursuant to 

§16-18-9(D)(5) of the 2006 Subdivision Ordinance. Provide an engineer’s cost estimate of all 

                                                 
8
 See Exhibit E for a copy of the contract 



 

 
Little Horn Final Plat 4 

Application #12.036 
Aug 2, 2013 

required public improvements for our review.  

6. That a preconstruction meeting is held with staff prior commencement or beginning of 

construction.  

7. That all construction is completed in accordance with the approved plans. 

8. Please revise the PUE’s to reflect MCC 8-12-46(G). 

9. Please revise the “owners dedication” to reflect MCC 8-12-32(N) 

10. Please provide signature block for all relevant signors, pursuant to MCC 8-12-32(N) 

11. That prior to final recording the County receives a letter from the Mountain Green Fire Protection 

District Chief indicating that he has review and approved the plans. 

12. That the “covenant running with the land” is recorded against the property at mylar recording, 

and that a note is placed on the plat that references its requirements.  

13. That inasmuch as the Mountain Green Sewer Improvement District, Questar Gas, and Rocky 

Mountain Power have all given conditional will serve letters for the proposal, approval of the plat 

amendment is conditioned on the fulfillment of the various requirements of those entities. Failure 

to comply may result in voidance of this approval. 

14. Please change the address of lot 2 as shown on the bluelines attached to this report.  

15. That an updated title report is submitted with the final mylar.  

16. That staff can make a positive finding that all administrative corrections and information has been 

received upon completion of the above conditions. 

 

This recommendation is based on the following findings: 

 

1. The nature of the subdivision is in conformance with the current and future land uses of the area. 

2. The proposal complies with the Morgan County 2010 General Plan. 

3. The proposal complies with current zoning requirements. 

4. That certain conditions herein are necessary to ensure compliance with adopted laws prior to 

subdivision plat recording.  

5. That the proposal is not detrimental to the health, safety, and welfare of the public. 

 

MODEL MOTIONS   

 

Sample Motion for a Positive Recommendation – “I move we forward a positive recommendation to the 

County Council for the Little Horn Final Subdivision Plat, and amendment to the Denise Wasuita Minor 

Subdivision, application 12.036, subject to the conditions and based on the findings presented in the staff 

report dated August 2, 2013,  and as modified by the conditions below:” 

 

1. List any additional findings and/or conditions… 

 

Sample Motion for a Negative Recommendation – “I move we forward  a negative recommendation to 

the County Council for the Little Horn Final Subdivision Plat, and amendment to the Denise Wasuita 

Minor Subdivision, application 12.036, based on the following findings:” 

 

1. List all findings…

 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 

Exhibit A: Future Land Use Map 

Exhibit B: Zoning Map 

Exhibit C: Denise Wasuita Minor Subdivision 



 

 
Little Horn Final Plat 5 

Application #12.036 
Aug 2, 2013 

Exhibit D: Prelim and Final Plats with Staff bluelines 

Exhibit E: Covenant Running with the Land 



Town Center 

Village Low Density Residential 

Village Residential 
3DUA 

Agricultural 

Vehicle Oriented 
Commercial 

Exhibit A: Future Land Use Map 
 

Agricultural 



RR-1 

Exhibit B: Zone Map 
 

A-20 

R1-20 

RR-1 

R1-20 

A-20 



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit C: Denise Wasuita Minor Subdivision



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit D: Prelim and Final Plat with Staff Bluelines



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit D: Prelim and Final Plat with Staff Bluelines



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit E: Covenant





















 
Planning and Development Services 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phases 4a and 4b 1 

App. # 12.172 and 12.173 
July 24, 2013 

 

48 West Young Street 

Morgan, UT  84050 

(801) 845-4015    

 

STAFF REPORT 
July 24, 2013

 
To: Morgan County Planning Commission 

Business Date:  8/8/13 

 

Prepared By: Charles Ewert, Planning Director 

 

Re: Preliminary Plat Approval of the Rollins Ranch Phase 4a and 4b Subdivisions 
Application No.: 12.172 and 12.173 

Applicant: Rollins Ranch, L.L.C. 

Project Location: Approximately 5000 West and 6000 North, on the western side of the Rollins Ranch 

Development 

Zoning: R1-20  Zone 

Acreage: Approximately 13.59 acres (Approximately 591,840 ft
2
) 

Request: Preliminary plat approval of 30 lots in the Rollins Ranch Development 

 

 
SUMMARY 
These applications are the final phases of the “Hidden Valley Neighborhood

1
,” an area in the Rollins 

Ranch Development that comprises all of the original phases 1-4. The developer has proposed both 
phases 4a and 4b on the same preliminary plat, however filed two separate applications for two separate 
subdivisions for reasons unknown to staff. Thus, this review is essentially two reviews combined into 
one. Proposals for development in Rollins Ranch are highly regulated, with requirements of a 
development agreement and County subdivision ordinances guiding the County’s review. 
 
The proposal includes 30 lots (18 in phase 4a and 12 in phase 4b) and two open space parcels in each 
phase. Each lot is provided access and frontage from new proposed streets. The lots and streets are in 
general compliance with the Rollins Ranch Concept plan. Staff have provided an in-depth review of the 
proposal and are recommending approval contingent on the conditions provided herein.  
 

BACKGROUND 

The Rollins Ranch Development is a master planned community that received certain development rights 

in 2006. At that time a development agreement was negotiated with the County for the development. That 

agreement has been amended twice since
2
, including the minor modifications of the overall concept plan

3
 

that specifically provided for the reconfiguration of lots as provided in this proposal.  

 

ANALYSIS 

                                                 
1
 See Rollins Ranch Development Agreement Exhibits B1-D1, F1-H1, J1, L1; also attached as Exhibit A herein 

2
 Amendment #1: Nov, 2011; Amendment #2: Feb, 2013 

3
 See Rollins Ranch Development Agreement Exhibits B1-D1, F1-H1, J1, L1; also attached as Exhibit A herein 



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phases 4a and 4b 2 

App. # 12.172 and 12.173 
July 24, 2013 

General Plan and Zoning.  Pursuant to the Future Land Use Map of the area
4
 the future land use 

designation is Village Low-Density Residential. The Village Low Density Residential designation 

provides for a lifestyle with planned single family residential communities, which include open space, 

recreation and cultural opportunities, including schools, churches and neighborhood facilities located in 

established village areas (formerly area plan boundaries) or master planned communities. The residential 

density is a maximum of 2 units per acre
5
. 

 

It can be observed that the Concept Plan
6
 of the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement meets this 

purpose. It can also be observed that the proposed subdivisions generally follow the approved Concept 

Plan.  

 

The entire property has approximately 13.59 acres in the R1-20 zone
7
. The purposes of the R1-20 zone is 

“to provide areas for very low density, single-family residential neighborhoods of spacious and 

uncrowded character
8
.” 

 

The County determined at the time the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement was approved that it met 

the intent of this purpose.  

 

Subdivision Layout.  The proposed subdivisions
9
 are on the western most side of the Rollins Ranch 

Development. The two subdivisions consist of a total of 30 lots, with new roads and streets. There is 

approximately 13.59 acres in the combined plat’s boundaries, 9.68 acres in lot space, 0.51 acres in open 

space, and 3.39 acres in roadways.  

 

The property is surrounded on the west and north with generally undeveloped land. The Parson Gravel pit 

is on the west, and there are rural agricultural lands to the north with minimal residential uses. To the east 

and south is the first three platted phases of the Rollins Ranch Development, as well as the residential 

uses in the Paul Warner Subdivision.  

 

Roads and Access.  The subdivisions are proposed to be accessed by a single point of entry off of Old 

Highway Road via Rollins Road. Under today’s ordinances this type of terminal street system would not 

be allowed, however, because the developer is vested in the configuration of the concept plan and former 

laws, it can be interpreted that the proposed access is allowed for these subdivisions.  

 

Each lot has frontage as graphically depicted in the proposal. Even though the required amount of lot 

width and frontage is not specifically addressed in the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement, it can be 

observed from the configuration of the concept plan that the typical width and frontage of the 2006 PRUD 

ordinance
10

 is not applicable to this Subdivision, but rather that some unquantified alternative is. The 

2006 PRUD ordinance required lots within a PRUD subdivision to have a minimum frontage of 100 ft. 

Thus, it can be interpreted that the concept plan is intended to act as an adopted alternative. Further, such 

flexibility can be found supported by MCC8-5B-6
11

 “Frontage Regulations,” wherein the frontage 

requirement of a typical lot within the R1-20 zone is 50 ft: 

 

                                                 
4
 See Exhibit B of this report for the Future Land Use Map of the area. 

5
 Morgan County 2010 General Plan, Pg. 12. 

6
 See Rollins Ranch Development Agreement Exhibits B1-D1, F1-H1, J1, L1; also attached as Exhibit A herein. 

7
 See Exhibit B of this report for the Zoning Map of the area. 

8
 MCC 8-5B-1(A). 

9
 See Exhibit E for the current subdivision proposal, with staff bluelines. 

10
 LUMC §16-20-030 (adopted as ordinance #CO-06-15 on Aug. 1, 2006, and recorded on Sep. 7, 2006). 

11
 See also LUMC §16-11-060. 



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phases 4a and 4b 3 

App. # 12.172 and 12.173 
July 24, 2013 

Table 1: Actual Open Space Provided

Total Acreage Open Space Acreage %

Phase 1 26.75 3.46 12.93%

Phase 2 5.95 0.67 11.26%

Phase 3 40.25 17.5 43.48%

Total 72.95 21.63 29.65%

Phases 1-3 72.95 21.63 29.65%

Proposed Phase 4 13.59 0.51 3.75%

Total 86.54 22.14 25.58%

8-5B-6: FRONTAGE REGULATIONS: 
 

  Districts   

R1-
20   

R1-
12   

R1-
8   

RM-
7   

RM-
15   

The minimum width of any lot at the street right of way line in feet 
in the districts regulated by this article, except as allowed for utility 
uses and governmentally operated essential service facilities in 
section 8-6-18 of this title, shall be   

50   45   40   45   45   

 

It appears, upon closer examination of other existing phases, that this interpretation was used for the 

platting of other lots
12

. 

 

All proposed lots in phases 4a and 4b meet at least this 50 foot frontage requirement, with the smallest 

proposed frontage being lot #427 at 82.97 ft. As for lot width, it may be determined that because the 

proposal follows the general configuration of the concept plan that the approved lot width is intended to 

do so (generally) as well.  

 

Open Space. The current proposal has approximately 0.51 acres (22,298 sq. ft.) of open space proposed 

(12,228 sq ft in 4a and 9,960 sq ft in 4b). The general configuration of the open space is in general 

compliance with the general configuration of Exhibit G-1 of the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement. 

Staff are recommending the open space note on the plat be revised to refer to it as “native open space” to 

keep it in a native state in perpetuity, as specified on Exhibit G-1 of the Agreement.  

 

When one sums the total provided open space in the Rollins Ranch plats 1-3 (as amended) with that 

proposed by phases 4a and 4b, the total is approximately 22.15 acres
13

, and when comparing acreage to 

acreage, is 5.05 acres less than required by the Rollins Ranch Concept Plan Exhibit D-1, which indicates 

that the open space area in phases 1-4 should be 27.2 acres at project completion. 

 

Because the master plan was not created with survey level accuracy in mind, it is more appropriate to 

discuss open space in terms of a percent of the whole 

rather than raw acres
14

. The developer promised that 

30% of the acreage of phases 1-4 would be held in 

open space
15

. Rollins Ranch phases 1-3 currently have 

a total of 29.65% open space. Phase 4 is proposing 

3.75% open space, yielding a total of 25.58% open 

space for phases 1-4, as shown in table 1. This is 

approximately 3.822 acres less than the 30% promised 

through the development agreement.  

 

The solution to the problem is simple, and the Planning Commission’s recommendation to the County 

                                                 
12

 See lots 306-310 and all lots on the circumference of cul-de-sacs in Rollins Ranch Phase III. Phases I and II were 

not studied for this specific purpose.  
13 

See Exhibit C of this report. 
14

 The concept plan says phases 1-4 should be approximately 90.58 acres, but the surveyors have found it to be 

closer to approximately 86.54 acres. 
15

 Rollins Ranch Development Agreement Exhibit D-1, also attached as part of Exhibit A herein. 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=8-6-18


 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phases 4a and 4b 4 

App. # 12.172 and 12.173 
July 24, 2013 

Council will need to take into consideration the following three options: 

 

1. The developer benefits by not providing the promised open space percentage. The Planning 

Commission may choose this option if the promised conceptual amount of open space is not a 

policy issue worth pushing in this development. Perhaps the adherence to the general 

configuration of the concept plan is more important than adherence to the promised open 

space acreage. 

2. The developer suffers by not being allowed to plat phases 4a and 4b as proposed, but is 

required to revise them to provide the promised percentage of open space for phases 1-4. The 

Planning Commission may make a determination that the promised additional acreage is 

important to this development, and that the developer should’ve taken it into consideration 

when platting the first three phases. This option emphasizes open space promises over the 

proposed general configuration of the concept plan. 

3. Perhaps a compromise can be struck to divide the difference in the provided open space of 

the Hidden Valley neighborhood to require phase four revisions to provide part of the missing 

open space acreage.  

 

This is a discretionary policy question for the Planning Commission to decide in their recommendation to 

the County Council. Because the vested laws that led to the creation of the development agreement do not 

actually require an open space minimum
16

 but that it appears to have been offered freely by the developer 

through the development agreement, and because the provided general configurations of the proposed 

open spaces comply with the proposed concept plan, staff are recommending that, as long as the Planning 

Commission can find no policy benefit in strictly adhering to the 30% open space promises, option #1 

above is applied
17

. 

 

Parks. The Rollins Ranch Development Agreement
18

 requires a “View Park” on the open space Parcel 

“A” in plat 4b. The “sitting area,” as promised, should be shown on plans. Maintenance of such is the 

responsibility of the HOA.  

 

CC&R’s. The Rollins Ranch development is required to have covenants, contracts, and restrictions 

(CC&R’s) recorded against all resulting properties
19

. The creation, review, and administration of the 

CC&R’s are not within the purview of the County, but ensuring that the developer follows through with 

recording them is.  

 

Grading and Land Disturbance.  The proposal includes very limited grading; the developer intents to 

install streets at existing grade. Lot grading is not necessary to provide building envelopes on each lot, 

and a note has been placed on the plat that any necessary grading for building permits will be the 

responsibility of the lot owner. Future grading that changes a grade by more than five vertical feet or 

1,000 cubic yards will be required to first obtain a grading permit.  

 

The construction drawings indicate minimal temporary grading necessary to provide temporary drainage 

swells for SWPPP controls during construction.  

 

Geologic and Geotechnical Evaluations.  Geologic units have been identified for the site, and no known 

hazardous units exist within the building envelopes of any lots or within any proposed street areas. There 

                                                 
16

 LUMC §16-20-030 (adopted as ordinance #CO-06-15 on Aug. 1, 2006, and recorded on Sep. 7, 2006): “The 

provision for open space or common area shall not be a requirement of the PRUD Subdivision.” 
17

 See finding #6 of this report. 
18

 See Rollins Ranch Development Agreement §2.4.1 and Exhibit H-1 
19

 See Rollins Ranch Development Agreement §2.3 and Exhibit E of that Agreement 



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phases 4a and 4b 5 

App. # 12.172 and 12.173 
July 24, 2013 

is a sliver of Norwood Tuff (Tn) on the rear of lots 401, 403, and 423, none of which enters the proposed 

building envelopes.  

 

A geotechnical report was conducted by AGEC. The report did not find negative soils conditions that 

should require additional consideration in this review, sufficed to say that building activities on the site 

should be reviewed against the considerations therein.  

 

Water Source.  The applicant is proposing culinary water from the Cottonwood Mutual Water Company. 

A will serve letter has been provided that indicates the company’s willingness to serve the development, 

but no indication that the company has acquired the water rights/shares or that there is sufficient wet 

water to deliver the yield requirements of MCC §8-12-46(B) and LUMC §16-19-5 is mentioned therein. 

There are secondary lines proposed on the utility plans for irrigation purposes as well. There needs to be 

commitment from both companies that indicate their right and ability to provide the flow for both culinary 

and secondary water. 

 

Even though there is no secondary system requirements in vested or current laws, if the applicant is 

separating the culinary flow requirements of  MCC §8-12-46(B) and LUMC §16-19-5 from the irrigation 

flow requirements, then conditions regarding the service of the secondary company may be necessary.  

 

Fire Protection.  The development should comply with the International Fire Code and the 2006 

Wildland Urban Interface Code
20

. Fire controls are administered by the Mountain Green Fire Protection 

District Chief. 

 

Sewer System.  Sewage will be provided by the Mountain Green Sewer Improvement District. They have 

provided a conditional will serve letter for the proposal. The applicant should adhere to the sewer districts 

requirements for approval. Unless otherwise required by County laws, the County should not condition 

approval on the specific requirements of the district lest those requirements change and it be construed 

that the County is enforcing inapplicable requirements, but the County should condition approval on the 

general premise that the District’s needs are met. 

 

Storm Water. Storm water plans have been received. They indicate that the original detention facilities are 

sufficient to accommodate the potential storm water events. A note should be added to the plans that 

indicate the existing detention basin’s overflow elevation.  

 

Utilities. The County has received will serve letters from Rocky Mountain Power, Questar Gas, Mountain 

Green Sewer Improvement District, and Cottonwood Mutual Water Company. The construction drawings 

indicate that they will be extended to each lot. Four street lights are also being proposed, in compliance 

with the requirements of Exhibit L-1 of the development agreement. The design of the streetlights should 

adhere to the standards therein. Operations and maintenance of the streetlights is the responsibility of the 

HOA.  

 

REVIEWS 

 

Planning and Development Services Review.   The Morgan County Planning and Development Service 

Department has completed their review of the subdivision application and has issued a recommendation 

for approval of the Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phases 4a and 4b, applications #12.172 and 12.173, 

with the following comments: 

 

                                                 
20

 The project is not exempt from the requirements of the 2006 Urban Wildland Interface Code, as can be seen on 

Exhibit G of this report.  



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phases 4a and 4b 6 

App. # 12.172 and 12.173 
July 24, 2013 

1. The proposal complies with the Morgan County 2010 General Plan. 

2. The proposal complies with zoning regulation requirements. 

3. The proposal generally complies with the 2006 subdivision regulations. 

4. The proposal generally complies with the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement. 

5. There are changes/revisions for the development that should be addressed in the final plat review. 

The current proposal is sufficient for preliminary plat approval, provided that all conditions listed 

in this report are adhered to.  

 

Engineering Review Comments.    

 

1. Fire hydrant locations to be reviewed and approved by Mountain Green Fire District. 

 

2. Geologic restrictions need to be mentioned in accordance with the County’s geologic ordinance 

for the soil types coinciding with the potential problem areas. 

 

3. The storm water calculations show that the detention basin has a capacity of 105,299 cubic feet 

when the water is at elevation 4743.75 (an apparent depth of 6.75 feet).  The calculations 

demonstrate that the required detention for phases 1 through 4B is 67,079 cubic feet.  A note 

should be added indicating the overflow elevation of the existing basin. 

 

4. Minimum longitudinal street slopes will be 0.5%. 

 

County Surveyor Comments. Relined comments from the County Surveyor are attached
21

. They are more 

relevant to the final plat review then they are to preliminary at this time. The County Surveyor has 

indicated that preliminary plat considerations have been provided with this proposal. 

 

Fire Chief Comments. The District Fire Chief recommends that a fire hydrant is placed at the corner of lot 

428 to provide adequate distance between other proposed hydrants, in a letter provided as Exhibit F 

herein.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends approval of the Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phases 4a and 4b, applications 

#12.172 and 12.173, subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. That all outsourced consultant services fees are paid in full prior to application for final plat(s).  

2. That phases 4a and 4b are clearly divided into two separate final plat submittals such that there is 

no confusion regarding the two open space parcels labeled “Parcel A” on one plat, or that the 

plats be revised appropriately.   

3. That a note be place on the final plat(s) that requires open space parcels “A” to be held and 

maintained in perpetuity as native open space.  

4. That the plans for the final plat are revised to provide for and ensure the installation of the “View 

Park” and “Sitting Area,” as required by the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement.   

5. That an updated title report is submitted with the final plat application(s).  

6. That revisions are made so that the final plat(s) are submitted with the verbatim note from §2.9 of 

the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement.  

7. That prior to final plat approval a signed and notarize acknowledgement from Browning Arms is 

submitted that acknowledges that §2.10 of the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement has be 

satisfied in a manner that meets their needs.  

                                                 
21

 See Exhibit D of this Report 



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phases 4a and 4b 7 

App. # 12.172 and 12.173 
July 24, 2013 

8. That all residential building envelopes and public utility easement lines are clearly demarked and 

such demarcations are appropriately provided for in the line legend of the final plat(s).  

9. That the final plat(s) include a signature block for the County Surveyor that says the following: 
 

MORGAN COUNTY SURVEYOR 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE MORGAN COUNTY SURVEYOR=S OFFICE HAS REVIEWED THIS PLAT FOR 

MATHEMATICAL CORRECTNESS, SECTION CORNER DATA AND FOR HARMONY WITH LINES AND 
MONUMENTS ON RECORD IN THE MORGAN COUNTY OFFICES.  THE APPROVAL OF THIS PLAT BY THE 

MORGAN COUNTY SURVEYOR DOES NOT RELIEVE THE LICENSED LAND SURVEYOR WHO EXECUTES 

THIS PLAT FROM THE RESPONSIBILITIES AND/FOR LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED THEREWITH. 
 

SIGNED THIS ____ DAY OF ________________, 2013 

 
_______________________________________________ 

MORGAN COUNTY SURVEYOR 

 

10. That the final plat(s) provide all of the surveyor’s corrections as provided in Exhibit D of this 

report.  

11. That the final plat(s) contain the “Restriction of Occupancy” note of §16-18-9(B)(14) of the 2006 

Subdivision Ordinance. 

12. That a signed notarized Public Improvements Agreement shall be required prior to final plat 

recording if public improvements are not installed/completed prior to plat recording, pursuant to 

§16-18-9(D)(5) of the 2006 Subdivision Ordinance. 

13. That final construction drawings show a fire hydrant at the corner of lot 428, as requested by the 

District Fire Chief.  

14. That final plats include a note referencing the CC&R’s as required by §2.3 and Exhibit E of the 

Rollins Ranch Development Agreement, and that such required CC&R’s are recorded in the 

Office of the County Recorder at the time of the recordation of the final plat.  

15. That inasmuch as the Mountain Green Sewer Improvement District, Questar Gas, and Rocky 

Mountain Power have all given conditional will serve letters for the proposal, approval of the 

preliminary plat is conditioned on the fulfillment of the various requirements of those entities. 

Failure to comply may result in voidance of preliminary plat approval. 

16. That a revised “will serve” letter is received from the Cottonwoods Mutual Water Company that 

indicates that all water rights/shares necessary to serve the development have been received and 

that the company currently has sufficient “wet water” to provide for the development pursuant to 

the requirements of MCC §8-12-46(B) and LUMC §16-19-5; and that irrigation provisions are 

provided for the same (either by the culinary company or optional secondary).  

17. That a note is added to the construction plans that indicate the existing detention basin’s overflow 

elevation for final plat application. 

18. That a street signage plan is submitted with the final plat application. 

19. That “Cattle Drive” and “Mustang Lane” are both provided new names from the 90 degree bend 

and beyond to provide for less confusion in the addressing of lots.  

20. That all bluelined notes on the preliminary plat (Exhibit E of this report) are addressed/provided 

on the final plat proposal and construction drawings as may be relevant.  

21. That streetlight standards shall comply with Exhibit L-1 of the Rollins Ranch Development 

Agreement. Operation and maintenance of the streetlights shall be the responsibility of the HOA.  

22. That noncompliance with the conditions herein may result in voidance of preliminary plat 

approval, and may also result in the inability to obtain final plat approval. 

23. That all other local, state, and federal laws are upheld.  

 

This recommendation is based on the following findings: 

 

1. The nature of the subdivision is in conformance with the current and future land uses of the area. 



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phases 4a and 4b 8 

App. # 12.172 and 12.173 
July 24, 2013 

2. The proposal complies with the Morgan County 2010 General Plan. 

3. The proposal complies with zoning requirements. 

4. The proposal generally complies with the 2006 subdivision regulations. 

5. The proposal generally complies with the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement. 

6. The proposed open space satisfies the requirements of the vested laws for the Rollins Ranch 

Development, and generally satisfies conceptual principles of opens space provisions as required 

by the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement, and as drawn on the concept plan in that 

agreement.  

7. The listed conditions will bring the proposal into compliance with current requirements, and 

assist in the successful creation of a final plat application. 

 

MODEL MOTION   

 

Sample Motion for a Positive Recommendation – “I move we forward a positive recommendation to the 

County Council of the Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phases 4a and 4b, applications #12.172 and 

12.173 subject to the findings and conditions listed in the July 24, 2013 staff report, and as modified by 

the conditions and findings below:” 

 

 

1. List any additional findings and conditions… 

 

Sample Motion for a Negative Recommendation – “I move we forward a negative recommendation to the 

County Council of the Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phases 4a and 4b, applications #12.172 and 

12.173 subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. List any additional findings… 

      

 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 

Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan 

Exhibit B: Future Land Use and Zoning Maps 

Exhibit C: Open Space in the Rollins Ranch Phases 1-3 

Exhibit D: County Surveyors Redlines of Draft Final Plats 

Exhibit E: County Planner’s Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plat(s) 

Exhibit F: Letter from Mountain Green Fire Protection District Chief 

Exhibit G: Urban Wildland Interface Exemption Map 

 



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan

cewert
Typewritten Text



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



Exhibit B: Future Land Use and Zoning Maps; Zone Map 
 

R1-20 

A-20 

RR-1 

MD 

CD 

CS CS 

CH 

CH RR-1 RR-1 

CD 

RR-10 

R1-20 

A-20 

A-20 



Exhibit B: Future Land Use and Zoning Maps; Future Land Use Map 
 

Rural Residential 

Agricultural 

Village Low Density Residential 

Village Low Density Residential 

Village Residential 
4DUA 

Town Center 

Village Residential 
3DUA 



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit C: Open Space in the Rollins Ranch Phases 1-3



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit C: Open Space in the Rollins Ranch Phases 1-3



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit C: Open Space in the Rollins Ranch Phases 1-3



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit D: County Surveyors Redlines of Draft Final Plat



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit D: County Surveyors Redlines of Draft Final Plat



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit E: County Planner's Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plat(s)



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit E: County Planner's Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plat(s)



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit E: County Planner's Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plat(s)



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit E: County Planner's Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plat(s)



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit F: Letter from Mountain Green Fire Protection District Chief



Exhibit G: Urban Wildland Interface Exemption Map 
 

Rural Residential 

Agricultural 

Village Low Density Residential 

Village Low Density Residential 

Village Residential 
4DUA 

Town Center 

Village Residential 
3DUA 

Non-Exempt 

Exempt 



 
Planning and Development Services 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 5 1 

App. # 12.099 
Aug 1, 2013 

 

48 West Young Street 

Morgan, UT  84050 

(801) 845-4015    

 

STAFF REPORT 
August 1, 2013

 
To: Morgan County Planning Commission 

Business Date:  8/8/13 

 

Prepared By: Charles Ewert, Planning Director 

 

Re: Preliminary Plat Approval of the Rollins Ranch Phase 5 Subdivision 
Application No.: 12.099 

Applicant: Rollins Ranch, L.L.C. 

Project Location: Approximately 5100 North Lariat Lane, on the northern side of the Rollins Ranch 

Development 

Zoning: RR-1  Zone 

Acreage: Approximately 13.56 acres (Approximately 590,972 ft
2
) 

Request: Preliminary plat approval of 10 lots in the Rollins Ranch Development Phase 5 

 

 
SUMMARY 
This application is the first phase of the “Hollows Neighborhood

1
,” an area in the Rollins Ranch 

Development that comprises all of the original phases 5-8. Proposals for development in Rollins Ranch 
are highly regulated, with requirements of a development agreement and County subdivision ordinances 
guiding the County’s review. 
 
The proposal includes 10 lots and one open space parcel. Each lot is provided access and frontage from 
new proposed streets. The lots and streets are in general compliance with the Rollins Ranch Concept plan. 
Staff have provided an in-depth review of the proposal and are recommending approval contingent on the 
conditions provided herein. Conditions of approval are lengthy because, in an effort to assist in the 
expediting of the application, staff have also applied conditions to assist the applicant in the design of 
their final plat, as requested by the applicant. 
 

BACKGROUND 

The Rollins Ranch Development is a master planned community that received certain development rights 

in 2006. At that time a development agreement was negotiated with the County for the development. That 

agreement has been amended twice since
2
, including the minor modifications of the overall concept plan

3
 

that specifically provided for the reconfiguration of lots as provided in this proposal.  

 

ANALYSIS 

                                                 
1
 See Rollins Ranch Development Agreement Exhibits B1-D1, F1-H1, J1, L1; also attached as Exhibit A herein. 

2
 Amendment #1: Nov, 2011; Amendment #2: Feb, 2013.  

3
 See Rollins Ranch Development Agreement Exhibits B1-D1, F1-H1, J1, L1; also attached as Exhibit A herein.  



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 5 2 

App. # 12.099 
Aug 1, 2013 

General Plan and Zoning.  Pursuant to the Future Land Use Map of the area
4
 the future land use 

designation is Village Low-Density Residential. The Village Low Density Residential designation 

provides for a lifestyle with planned single family residential communities, which include open space, 

recreation and cultural opportunities, including schools, churches and neighborhood facilities located in 

established village areas (formerly area plan boundaries) or master planned communities. The residential 

density is a maximum of 2 units per acre
5
. 

 

It can be observed that the Concept Plan
6
 of the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement meets these 

standards. It can also be observed that the proposed subdivision generally follows the approved Concept 

Plan.  

 

The entire property has approximately 13.56 acres in the RR-1 zone
7
. The purposes of the RR-1 zone are 

as follows
8
: 

 
1. The purposes of providing a rural residential district are: 

a. To promote and preserve in appropriate areas conditions favorable to large lot family 

life; 

b. Maintaining a rural atmosphere; 

c. The keeping of limited numbers of animals and fowl; and 

d. Reduced requirements for public utilities, services and infrastructure. 

2. These districts are intended to be primarily residential in character and protected from 

encroachment by commercial and industrial uses. 

 

The County determined at the time the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement was approved that it met 

the intent of this purpose.  

 

Subdivision Layout.  The proposed subdivision
9
 is on the northern most side of the Rollins Ranch 

Development. The subdivision consists of a total of 10 lots, with new streets. There is approximately 

13.56 acres in the platted boundaries, 11.95 acres in lot space, 0.06 acres in open space, and 1.54 acres in 

roadways. The property is surrounded on the west and north and east with generally undeveloped 

agricultural lands. To the south is the first three platted phases of the Rollins Ranch Development.  

 

Roads and Access.  The subdivisions are proposed to be accessed by a single point of entry off of Old 

Highway Road via Rollins Road and Ranch Blvd. Under today’s ordinances this type of terminal street 

system would not be allowed, however, because the developer is vested in the configuration of the 

concept plan and former laws, it can be interpreted that the proposed access is allowed for these 

subdivisions.  

 

Each lot has frontage as graphically depicted in the proposal. Even though the required amount of lot 

width and frontage is not specifically addressed in the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement, it can be 

observed from the configuration of the concept plan that the typical width and frontage of the 2006 PRUD 

ordinance
10

 is observed. The 2006 PRUD ordinance required lots within a PRUD subdivision to have a 

minimum frontage of 100 ft. All proposed lots have more than 100 feet of frontage. 

 

                                                 
4
 See Exhibit B of this report for the Future Land Use Map of the area. 

5
 Morgan County 2010 General Plan, Pg. 12. 

6
 See Rollins Ranch Development Agreement Exhibits B1-D1, F1-H1, J1, L1; also attached as Exhibit A herein . 

7
 See Exhibit B of this report for the Zoning Map of the area. 

8
 MCC §8-5A-1. 

9
 See Exhibit E for the current subdivision proposal, with staff bluelines. 

10
 LUMC §16-20-030 (adopted as ordinance #CO-06-15 on Aug. 1, 2006, and recorded on Sep. 7, 2006). 



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 5 3 

App. # 12.099 
Aug 1, 2013 

Open Space. The current proposal has approximately 0.06 acres (2,765 sq. ft.) of open space proposed. 

The general configuration of the open space does not encompass the required open space adjacent 

(northward) to phase 5 as shown in Exhibit G-1 of the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement. It appears 

that all of the open space to the north of phase 5 is currently planned to be platted with phase 6. Staff are 

concerned that if phase 6 is not recorded prior to phase 5 that it may be possible for the developer to fail 

to plat phase 6, thereby causing the loss of platting of required open space that could have been preserved 

if was included with phase 5. Therefore, staff are recommending that phase 6 is platted first. 

 

Only 0.4% opens space is being proposed in phase 5. The open space area for both phase 5 and phase 6 

(1,381,588 sq. ft., or 31.72 acres) provides 44.6% of the total open space for the combined plats. The 

concept plan requires that the combination of phases 5-8 yields 47.4%
11

 open space area. The applicant no 

longer owns the unplatted phases 7-8, and no survey level information is available to calculate the 

remaining open space required for 7-8 after 5-6 are platted, so it is important for the Planning 

Commission to take note that because the combined phases 5-6 do not provide for 47.4% open space this 

means that the remaining open space ratio of phases 7-8 will be higher than 47.4%. It is unclear with the 

information in the development agreement that this was intended.  

 

If the Planning Commission is concerned about it then an open space analysis of phases 5-8 or some other 

modification to the proposal should be requested as a condition of approval and be submitted with the 

final plat application for staff review. It may be possible that the owner of phases 7-8 should be involved 

in the open space decision making in order to avoid future complications of enforcing the increased open 

space percentage against his property. Given that there are no specific provisions in the development 

agreement otherwise, nor any other evidence to the contrary, staff are assuming that the current proposal 

is the intent of the all owners of phases 5-8, and are entering that into the record as a recommended 

finding
12

 of approval for this phase.  

 

CC&R’s. The Rollins Ranch development is required to have covenants, contracts, and restrictions 

(CC&R’s) recorded against all resulting properties
13

. The creation, review, and administration of the 

CC&R’s are not within the purview of the County, but ensuring that the developer follows through with 

recording them is.  

 

Grading and Land Disturbance.  The proposal includes extensive grading
14

; the developer intents to cut 

down the tops of the ridgelines 5’-25’ in some areas and fill in valleys with 5’-10’ of fill. It appears the 

applicant is proposing that all earth moving be contained within the site, and no traffic mitigation plan has 

been proposed or is necessary. Staff recommend conditioning approval of the work on site containment, 

and upon the submittal of a performance bond separate from any improvements bond, for the reclamation 

and revegetation of the property.   

 

The proposed grading is a major earthwork operation.  The earthwork for the proposed design should be 

done by the developer with a competent contractor skilled in earthwork operations to insure conformance 

with the design elevations and grades. 

 

Geologic and Geotechnical Evaluations.  Geologic units have been identified for the site, and there are 

known geologic hazards study areas that exist within the building envelopes of lots and street areas
15

. 

                                                 
11

 See the tables in Exhibit D of the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement  
12

 See Staff recommended finding #7 herein 
13

 See Rollins Ranch Development Agreement §2.3 and Exhibit E of the Agreement 
14

 See Exhibit H of this report for their earthwork plan 
15

 See Exhibit E of this report 



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 5 4 

App. # 12.099 
Aug 1, 2013 

These units include Tn, Qmc, and Qac. A geologic hazards study is required
16

 prior to any final plat 

approvals. This report should be submitted with the final plat application. Because there are known 

geologic hazards study areas onsite, and because substantial earthwork is being proposed, an updated 

geotechnical review is necessary to ensure that the project geologist, geotechnical engineer, and civil 

engineer all cooperate in the manner prescribed in MCC §8-5I. 

 

Originally a geotechnical report was conducted by AGEC
17

. The report did not find negative soils 

conditions that should require additional consideration in this review, however it was not conducted in 

conformance with the geologic hazards ordinance, and should be supplemented, as mentioned herein.  

 

Water Source.  The applicant is proposing culinary water from the Cottonwood Mutual Water Company. 

A will serve letter has been provided that indicates the company’s willingness to serve the development, 

but no indication that the company has acquired the water rights/shares or that there is sufficient wet 

water to deliver the yield requirements of MCC §8-12-46(B) and LUMC §16-19-5 is mentioned therein. 

There are secondary lines proposed on the utility plans for irrigation purposes as well. There needs to be 

commitment from both companies that indicate their right and ability to provide the flow for both culinary 

and secondary water. 

 

Even though there is no secondary system requirements in vested or current laws, if the applicant is 

separating the culinary flow requirements of  MCC §8-12-46(B) and LUMC §16-19-5 from the irrigation 

flow requirements, then conditions regarding the service of the secondary company may be necessary.  

 

Fire Protection.  The development should comply with the International Fire Code and the 2006 

Wildland Urban Interface Code
18

. Fire controls are administered by the Mountain Green Fire Protection 

District Chief. 

 

Sewer System.  Sewage will be provided by the Mountain Green Sewer Improvement District. They have 

provided a conditional will serve letter for the proposal. The applicant should adhere to the sewer districts 

requirements for approval. The County should not condition approval on the specific requirements of the 

district lest those requirements change and it be construed that the County is enforcing inapplicable 

requirements, but the County should condition approval on the general premise that the District’s needs 

are met. 

 

Storm Water. Storm water plans have been received, but were received too late for a more adequate 

review by the County Engineer (received 8/1/13). A preliminary review indicates that the proposal to use 

existing detention facilities is likely sufficient to serve phases 5 and 6 of Rollins Ranch, but we are 

specifically concerned that there will be no more system capacity for phases 7 and 8, which is owned by 

another owner. This may indeed be the understanding of all owners of phases 5-8, and is a private issue 

for them to work out. However, staff feel it is important to enter our understanding of the issue into record 

here. A finding to this extent is provided with staff’s recommendation below.  

 

Utilities. The County has received will serve letters from Rocky Mountain Power, Mountain Green Sewer 

Improvement District, and Cottonwood Mutual Water Company. We do not have a will serve letter from 

Questar for this project, and the applicant should propose a heating plan for the development.  

 

The construction drawings indicate that service lines will be extended to each lot. A street light is also 

                                                 
16

 See MCC §8-5I 
17

 AGEC Report Dated Nov. 15, 2005 
18

 The project is not exempt from the requirements of the 2006 Urban Wildland Interface Code, as can be seen on 

Exhibit G of this report.  



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 5 5 

App. # 12.099 
Aug 1, 2013 

being proposed, in compliance with the requirements of Exhibit L-1 of the development agreement. The 

design of the streetlights should adhere to the standards therein. Operations and maintenance of the 

streetlights is the responsibility of the HOA.  

 

REVIEWS 

 

Planning and Development Services Review.   The Morgan County Planning and Development Service 

Department has completed their review of the subdivision application and has issued a recommendation 

for approval of the Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 5, application #12.099, with the following 

comments: 

 

1. The proposal complies with the Morgan County 2010 General Plan. 

2. The proposal complies with zoning regulation requirements. 

3. The proposal generally complies with the 2006 subdivision regulations. 

4. The proposal generally complies with the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement. 

5. There are changes/revisions for the development that should be addressed in the final plat review. 

The current proposal is sufficient for preliminary plat approval, provided that all conditions listed 

in this report are adhered to.  

 

Engineering Review Comments.   The County Engineer has complete a review of the proposal, and offers 

the following comments. He has indicated that most of the comments would otherwise be more relevant 

to final plat/plan approval, and their deficiencies should not hold up preliminary approval.  

 

1. A detail drawing is still needed for the proposed cross-gutter.  We prefer the gutter be at least 5’ 

wide. 

2. The proper roadway cross-section is shown, but the park strip is labeled as 5.5’ and shown with a 

6’ width.  The correct width is 6’. 

3. We did not receive the storm water calculations requested in our previous memo.  We also 

requested a storm water drainage easement across phase 6 property for the runoff from 6200 

North Street (see memo items 7 and 8).  

4. Fire hydrant locations are to be reviewed and approved by Mountain Green Fire District. 

5. The open space nature trail between Lots 505 and 506 is called out as Parcel A in the notes but 

not shown as such on the plans. An access ramp should be installed for maintenance vehicle 

access, and fences should be installed on both sides to make sure the 10’ corridor is preserved.  

The developer can require the fencing from the homebuyers, but it should be required as a 

condition of approval.  The development agreement requires dedication of the open space north 

of Phase 5.  It is not shown on the plans and it is unclear how the space is to be dedicated if not 

on a plat.  

6. Geologic restrictions need to be mentioned in accordance with the County’s geologic ordinance 

for the soil types coinciding with the potential problem areas. 

7. The proposed grading is a major earthwork operation that should not be left as a responsibility of 

individual building contractors.  The earthwork for the proposed design should be done by the 

developer with a competent contractor skilled in earthwork operations to insure conformance with 

the design elevations and grades. 

 

County Surveyor Comments. Relined comments from the County Surveyor are attached
19

. They are more 

relevant to the final plat review then they are to preliminary at this time, but at the developer’s request we 

have made them available. The County Surveyor has indicated that preliminary plat considerations have 

been provided with this proposal. 

                                                 
19

 See Exhibit D of this Report 



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 5 6 

App. # 12.099 
Aug 1, 2013 

 

Fire Chief Comments. The District Fire Chief has indicated that hydrant placement in this subdivision is 

satisfactory.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends approval of the Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 5, applications #12.099, 

subject to the conditions below. It is important to note that at the developer’s request most of these 

conditions also encompass final plat/plan approval requirements:  

 

1. That all outsourced consultant services fees are paid in full prior to application for final plat.  

2. That any outstanding taxes for the property are paid prior to application for final plat. 

3. That all existing easements and/or utility lines as indicated on the title report are provided for on 

the final plat. 

4. That an updated title report is submitted with the final plat application, and that the description of 

the plat boundaries shall match the description in the report.  

5. That inasmuch as phase 5 does not contain the percentage of open space area as shown in the 

concept plan of the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement, phase 5 plat shall only be recorded 

after phase 6 plat, which contains the open space immediately north of phase 5.  

6. That the note on the plat referencing open space parcel A is clarified. 

7. That the public nature of the access to the open space between lots 505 and 506 is clarified, that 

an access ramp is installed for maintenance vehicle access, and that fences are installed on both 

sides to make sure the 10’ corridor is preserved.  

8. That for addressing clarity and plat/construction drawings consistency, the street named 6200 

North shall be renamed to Lasso Lane or another approved name.  

9. There appear to be several “copy/paste” errors in the notes on the plat that need to be revised or 

removed as noted on the bluelined drawings reviewed by the County Planner on July 31, 2013.  

10. That revisions are made so that the final plat is submitted with the verbatim note from §2.9 of the 

Rollins Ranch Development Agreement.  

11. That prior to final plat approval a signed and notarize acknowledgement from Browning Arms is 

submitted that acknowledges that §2.10 of the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement has be 

satisfied in a manner that meets their needs.  

12. That all residential building envelopes and public utility easement lines are clearly demarked and 

such demarcations are appropriately provided for in the line legend of the final plat.  

13. That all residential building envelopes are designed to not include any areas deemed 

“unbuildable.” 

14. That the final plat includes a signature block for the County Surveyor that says the following: 
 

MORGAN COUNTY SURVEYOR 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE MORGAN COUNTY SURVEYORS OFFICE HAS REVIEWED THIS PLAT FOR 

MATHEMATICAL CORRECTNESS, SECTION CORNER DATA AND FOR HARMONY WITH LINES AND 

MONUMENTS ON RECORD IN THE MORGAN COUNTY OFFICES.  THE APPROVAL OF THIS PLAT BY THE 
MORGAN COUNTY SURVEYOR DOES NOT RELIEVE THE LICENSED LAND SURVEYOR WHO EXECUTES 

THIS PLAT FROM THE RESPONSIBILITIES AND/FOR LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED THEREWITH. 

 

SIGNED THIS ____ DAY OF ________________, 2013 

 

_______________________________________________ 
MORGAN COUNTY SURVEYOR 

 

15. That the final plat provides all of the surveyor’s corrections as provided in Exhibit D of this 

report.  

16. That a signed notarized Public Improvements Agreement shall be required prior to final plat 



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 5 7 

App. # 12.099 
Aug 1, 2013 

recording if public improvements are not installed/completed prior to plat recording, pursuant to 

§16-18-9(D)(5) of the 2006 Subdivision Ordinance. 

17. That inasmuch as the Mountain Green Sewer Improvement District and Rocky Mountain Power 

have given conditional will serve letters for the proposal, approval of the preliminary plat is 

conditioned on the fulfillment of the various requirements of those entities. Failure to comply 

may result in voidance of preliminary plat approval. 

18. That a “will serve” letter is submitted from Questar Gas; or that and alternative building heating 

plan is proposed for the units in the development.  

19. That a revised “will serve” letter is received from the Cottonwoods Mutual Water Company that 

indicates that all water rights/shares necessary to serve the development have been received and 

that the company currently has sufficient “wet water” to provide for the development pursuant to 

the requirements of MCC §8-12-46(B) and LUMC §16-19-5; and that irrigation provisions are 

provided for the same (either by the culinary company or optional secondary).  

20. That a street signage plan is submitted with the final plat application. 

21. That streetlight standards shall comply with Exhibit L-1 of the Rollins Ranch Development 

Agreement. Operation and maintenance of the streetlights shall be the responsibility of the HOA.  

22. That a geologic hazards analysis is conducted for the proposal and submitted with final plat 

submittal with all other relevant and related documents that conforms to the requirements of 

MCC §8-5I. Every lot within a "geologic hazards study area" as defined by County Code shall 

have a buildable area safe for the intended use. Each buildable area shall also have access from 

the nearest existing public or private street which is free of unreasonable and unacceptable 

geologic hazards. Any geologic hazards which must be mitigated in order to provide a buildable 

area and acceptable and reasonable access must be mitigated prior to the issuance of a building 

permit. 

23. That the developer’s geotechnical engineer provide an updated memo addressing the additional 

requirements of MCC 8-5I that were not more fully addressed in the November 16, 2006 

geotechnical report, and cooperate with the developer’s geologist, as may be applicable.  

24. That a geologic hazards scoping meeting shall be required prior to final plat application with the 

applicant’s geologist and geotechnical engineer, pursuant to MCC 8-5I-8.  

25. That all site grading shall be done in conformance with the approved plans, as stamped by the 

County Engineer, and shall be wholly contained onsite. No truck traffic mitigation plan has been 

presented therefore no truck traffic shall be permitted on public roads. Earthwork shall be 

conducted by the developer with a competent contractor skilled in earthwork operations to insure 

conformance with the design elevations and grades. All work shall be influenced by a licensed 

geologist and geotechnical engineer in conformance with any geologic hazards and geotechnical 

reporting, as may be applicable in MCC 8-5I.  

26. That a note is placed in the final plat that indicates that large amounts of fill may be found on 

various lots in the subdivision and that further geotechnical considerations may be necessary prior 

to building permit issuance.  

27. That bonding separate from public improvement guarantees shall be required for the reclamation 

and revegetation of all major earthwork permissions prior to the commencement or beginning of 

construction, and that an engineer’s cost estimate shall be submitted with the final plat 

application.  

28.  That letters of consent and approval from all neighboring land owners affected by the major 

earthwork is submitted to the County. 

29. That a more specific revegetation plan is presented for all disturbed areas with final plat 

submittal. 

30. That storm water calculations are provided with final construction drawings for the County 

Engineer’s review that demonstrate that there is sufficient storm water facilities provided to 

appropriately serve the proposed development. 

31. That detail drawing is provided for the proposed cross-gutter, and that it is 5’ wide.  



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 5 8 

App. # 12.099 
Aug 1, 2013 

32. That the discrepancies in the provided roadway cross sections are corrected (park strip width).  

33. That all comments and corrections requested by all county reviewers are appropriately addressed 

to the satisfaction of the respective reviewer with the submittal of the final plat application. 

34. That noncompliance with the conditions herein may result in voidance of preliminary plat 

approval, and may also result in the inability to obtain final plat approval. 

35. That all other local, state, and federal laws are upheld.  

 

This recommendation is based on the following findings: 

 

1. The nature of the subdivision is in conformance with the current and future land uses of the area. 

2. The proposal complies with the Morgan County 2010 General Plan. 

3. The proposal complies with zoning requirements of the RR-1 zone as influenced by the PRUD 

and Rollins Ranch Development Agreement. 

4. The proposal generally complies with the 2006 subdivision regulations. 

5. The proposal generally complies with the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement. 

6. That requiring the simultaneous recording of phases 5 and 6 as they are being currently proposed 

will avoid the potential lack of platting of and preservation of required open space, and is 

supported by §4.2A of the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement to provide for an orderly 

development of the project.  

7. That it appears to be the intent of the applicant to shift responsibility for all unplatted ratios of 

open space areas, as required in Exhibit D of the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement, onto 

the different owner(s) of phases 6-8. This is a private issue for those owners to address with each 

other as may be necessary. 

8. That it inasmuch as it appears with this proposal that there may not be sufficient storm drain 

system capacity to accommodate phases 7-8 it appears to be the intent of the applicant to shift 

responsibility for new drainage facilities onto the owner of phases 7-8 at the time those phases are 

platted. This is a private issue for those owners to address with each other as may be necessary.  

9. That MCC §8-5I indicates certain geologic units as hazard study areas, and requires that all 

development within them is free from unreasonable or unacceptable geologic hazards.  

10. That final plat approval and the approval of the proposed grading and earthwork plans constitute 

approval of the earthwork without need for other specific permits, pursuant to MCC §8-8-

7(B)(4)(h). 

11. The listed conditions will bring the proposal into compliance with current requirements, and 

assist in the successful creation of a final plat application. 

 

MODEL MOTION   

 

Sample Motion for a Positive Recommendation – “I move we forward a positive recommendation to the 

County Council of the Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase5, applications #12.099 subject to the 

findings and conditions listed in the August 1, 2013 staff report, and as modified by the conditions and 

findings below:” 

 

 

1. List any additional findings and conditions… 

 

Sample Motion for a Negative Recommendation – “I move we forward a negative recommendation to the 

County Council of the Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 5, applications #12.099 subject to the 

following conditions: 

 

1. List any additional findings… 

      



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 5 9 

App. # 12.099 
Aug 1, 2013 

 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 

Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan 

Exhibit B: Future Land Use and Zoning Maps 

Exhibit C: Deleted 

Exhibit D: County Surveyors Redlines of Draft Final Plats 

Exhibit E: County Planner’s Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plat(s) 

Exhibit F: Letter from Mountain Green Fire Protection District Chief 

Exhibit G: Urban Wildland Interface Exemption Map 

Exhibit H: Earthwork Plan 



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan

cewert
Typewritten Text



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



RR-1 

Exhibit B: Future Land Use and Zoning Maps; Zone Map 
 

A-20 

R1-20 

MD RR-10 

RR-1 



Agricultural 

Village Low Density Residential 

Rural Residential 

Village Low Density Residential 

Village Residential 
4DUA 

Agricultural 

Business Park 

Exhibit B: Future Land Use and Zoning Maps; Future Land Use Map 
 



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit D: County Surveyor's Redlines of Draft Final Plats



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit E: County Planner's Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plats



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit E: County Planner's Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plats



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit E: County Planner's Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plats



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit E: County Planner's Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plats



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit E: County Planner's Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plats



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit E: County Planner's Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plats



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit F: Letter from Mountain Green Fire Protection District Chief



Rural Residential 

Village Residential 
4DUA Business Park 

Exhibit G: Urban Wildland Interface Exemption Map 
 

Non-Exempt 

Exempt 



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit H: Earthwork Plan (Mass Grading)



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit H: Earthwork Plan (Mass Grading)



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit H: Earthwork Plan (Mass Grading)



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit H: Earthwork Plan (Mass Grading)



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit H: Earthwork Plan (Mass Grading)



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit H: Earthwork Plan (Mass Grading)



 
Planning and Development Services 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 6 1 

App. # 12.100 
Aug 2, 2013 

 

48 West Young Street 

Morgan, UT  84050 

(801) 845-4015    

 

STAFF REPORT 
August 2, 2013

 
To: Morgan County Planning Commission 

Business Date:  8/8/13 

 

Prepared By: Charles Ewert, Planning Director 

 

Re: Preliminary Plat Approval of the Rollins Ranch Phase 6 Subdivision 
Application No.: 12.100 

Applicant: Rollins Ranch, L.L.C. 

Project Location: Approximately 5100 North Horseshoe Hollow, on the northern side of the Rollins 

Ranch Development 

Zoning: RR-1  Zone 

Acreage: Approximately 57.48 acres (Approximately 2,504,187 ft
2
) 

Request: Preliminary plat approval of 10 residential lots in the Rollins Ranch Development 

Phase 6 

 

 
SUMMARY 
This application is the second phase of the “Hollows Neighborhood

1
,” an area in the Rollins Ranch 

Development that comprises all of the original phases 5-8. Proposals for development in Rollins Ranch 
are highly regulated, with requirements of a development agreement and County subdivision ordinances 
guiding the County’s review. 
 
The proposal includes 10 lots and one open space parcel. Each lot is provided access and frontage from 
new proposed streets. The lots and streets are in general compliance with the Rollins Ranch Concept plan. 
Staff have provided an in-depth review of the proposal and are recommending approval contingent on the 
conditions provided herein. Conditions of approval are lengthy because, in an effort to assist in the 
expediting of the application, staff have also applied conditions to assist the applicant in the design of 
their final plat, as requested by the applicant.  

 

BACKGROUND 

The Rollins Ranch Development is a master planned community that received certain development rights 

in 2006. At that time a development agreement was negotiated with the County for the development. That 

agreement has been amended twice since
2
, including the minor modifications of the overall concept plan

3
 

that specifically provided for the reconfiguration of lots as provided in this proposal.  

 

                                                 
1
 See Rollins Ranch Development Agreement Exhibits B1-D1, F1-H1, J1, L1; also attached as Exhibit A herein. 

2
 Amendment #1: Nov, 2011; Amendment #2: Feb, 2013.  

3
 See Rollins Ranch Development Agreement Exhibits B1-D1, F1-H1, J1, L1; also attached as Exhibit A herein.  



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 6 2 

App. # 12.100 
Aug 2, 2013 

ANALYSIS 

General Plan and Zoning.  Pursuant to the Future Land Use Map of the area
4
 the future land use 

designation is Village Low-Density Residential. The Village Low Density Residential designation 

provides for a lifestyle with planned single family residential communities, which include open space, 

recreation and cultural opportunities, including schools, churches and neighborhood facilities located in 

established village areas (formerly area plan boundaries) or master planned communities. The residential 

density is a maximum of 2 units per acre
5
. 

 

It can be observed that the Concept Plan
6
 of the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement meets these 

standards. It can also be observed that the proposed subdivision generally follows the approved Concept 

Plan.  

 

The entire property has approximately 13.56 acres in the RR-1 zone
7
. The purposes of the RR-1 zone are 

as follows
8
: 

 
1. The purposes of providing a rural residential district are: 

a. To promote and preserve in appropriate areas conditions favorable to large lot family 

life; 

b. Maintaining a rural atmosphere; 

c. The keeping of limited numbers of animals and fowl; and 

d. Reduced requirements for public utilities, services and infrastructure. 

2. These districts are intended to be primarily residential in character and protected from 

encroachment by commercial and industrial uses. 

 

The County determined at the time the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement was approved that it met 

the intent of this purpose.  

 

Subdivision Layout.  The proposed subdivision
9
 is on the northern most side of the Rollins Ranch 

Development. The subdivision consists of a total of 10 lots, one large open space parcel, and new streets. 

There is approximately 57.48 acres in the platted boundaries, 23.7 acres in lot space, 31.65 acres in open 

space, and 2.10 acres in roadways. The property is surrounded on the west and north and east with 

generally undeveloped agricultural lands. To the south is the first three platted phases of the Rollins 

Ranch Development.  

 

Roads and Access.  The subdivisions are proposed to be accessed by a single point of entry off of Old 

Highway Road via Rollins Road and Ranch Blvd. Under today’s ordinances this type of terminal street 

system would not be allowed, however, because the developer is vested in the configuration of the 

concept plan and former laws, it can be interpreted that the proposed access is allowed for these 

subdivisions.  

 

Each lot has frontage as graphically depicted in the proposal. Even though the required amount of lot 

width and frontage is not specifically addressed in the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement, it can be 

observed from the configuration of the concept plan that the typical width and frontage of the 2006 PRUD 

ordinance
10

 is observed. The 2006 PRUD ordinance required lots within a PRUD subdivision to have a 

                                                 
4
 See Exhibit B of this report 

5
 Morgan County 2010 General Plan, Pg. 12 

6
 See Rollins Ranch Development Agreement Exhibits B1-D1, F1-H1, J1, L1; also attached as Exhibit A herein  

7
 See Exhibit B of this report 

8
 MCC §8-5A-1 

9
 See Exhibit E for the current subdivision proposal, with staff bluelines 

10
 LUMC §16-20-030 (adopted as ordinance #CO-06-15 on Aug. 1, 2006, and recorded on Sep. 7, 2006) 



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 6 3 

App. # 12.100 
Aug 2, 2013 

minimum frontage of 100 ft. All proposed lots have more than 100 feet of frontage. 

 

Open Space. The current proposal has approximately 31.65 acres (1,378,823 sq. ft.) of open space 

proposed. The general configuration of the open space includes the required open space adjacent 

(northward) to phase 5 as shown in Exhibit G-1 of the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement. Staff are 

concerned that if phase 6 is not recorded prior to phase 5 that it may be possible for the developer to fail 

to plat phase 6, thereby causing the loss of platting of required open space that could have been preserved 

if was included with phase 5. Therefore, staff are recommending that phase 6 is platted first. 

 

Only 55.0% opens space is being proposed in phase 6. The open space area for both phase 5 and phase 6 

(1,381,588 sq. ft., or 31.72 acres) provides 44.6% of the total open space for the combined plats. The 

concept plan requires that the combination of phases 5-8 yields 47.4%
11

 open space area. The applicant no 

longer owns the unplatted phases 7-8, and no survey level information is available to calculate the 

remaining open space required for 7-8 after 5-6 are platted, so it is important for the Planning 

Commission to take note that because the combined phases 5-6 do not provide for 47.4% open space this 

means that the remaining open space ratio of phases 7-8 will be higher than 47.4%. It is unclear with the 

information in the development agreement that this was intended.  

 

If the Planning Commission is concerned about it then an open space analysis of phases 5-8 or some other 

modification to the proposal should be requested as a condition of approval and be submitted with the 

final plat application for staff review. It may be possible that the owner of phases 7-8 should be involved 

in the open space decision making in order to avoid future complications of enforcing the increased open 

space percentage against his property. Given that there are no specific provisions in the development 

agreement otherwise, nor any other evidence to the contrary, staff are assuming that the current proposal 

is the intent of the all owners of phases 5-8, and are entering that into the record as a recommended 

finding
12

 of approval for this phase.  

 

CC&R’s. The Rollins Ranch development is required to have covenants, contracts, and restrictions 

(CC&R’s) recorded against all resulting properties
13

. The creation, review, and administration of the 

CC&R’s are not within the purview of the County, but ensuring that the developer follows through with 

recording them is.  

 

Grading and Land Disturbance.  The proposal includes extensive grading
14

; the developer intents to cut 

down the tops of the ridgelines 5’-25’ in some areas and fill in valleys with 5’-10’ of fill. It appears the 

applicant is proposing that all earth moving be contained within the site, and no traffic mitigation plan has 

been proposed or is necessary. Staff recommend conditioning approval of the work on site containment, 

and upon the submittal of a performance bond separate from any improvements bond, for the reclamation 

and revegetation of the property.  

 

The proposed grading is a major earthwork operation.  The earthwork for the proposed design should be 

done by the developer with a competent contractor skilled in earthwork operations to insure conformance 

with the design elevations and grades. 

 

Geologic and Geotechnical Evaluations.  Geologic units have been identified for the site, and there are 

known geologic hazards study areas that exist within the building envelopes of lots and street areas
15

. 

                                                 
11

 See the tables in Exhibit D of the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement  
12

 See Staff recommended finding #7 herein 
13

 See Rollins Ranch Development Agreement §2.3 and Exhibit E of the Agreement 
14

 See Exhibit H of this report for their earthwork plan 
15

 See Exhibit E of this report 



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 6 4 

App. # 12.100 
Aug 2, 2013 

These units include Tn, Qmc, and Qac. A geologic hazards study is required
16

 prior to any final plat 

approvals. This report should be submitted with the final plat application. Because there are known 

geologic hazards study areas onsite, and because substantial earthwork is being proposed, an updated 

geotechnical review is necessary to ensure that the project geologist, geotechnical engineer, and civil 

engineer all cooperate in the manner prescribed in MCC §8-5I. 

 

Originally a geotechnical report was conducted by AGEC
17

. The report did not find negative soils 

conditions that should require additional consideration in this review, however it was not conducted in 

conformance with the geologic hazards ordinance, and should be supplemented, as mentioned herein.  

 

Water Source.  The applicant is proposing culinary water from the Cottonwood Mutual Water Company. 

A will serve letter has been provided that indicates the company’s willingness to serve the development, 

but no indication that the company has acquired the water rights/shares or that there is sufficient wet 

water to deliver the yield requirements of MCC §8-12-46(B) and LUMC §16-19-5 is mentioned therein. 

There are secondary lines proposed on the utility plans for irrigation purposes as well. There needs to be 

commitment from both companies that indicate their right and ability to provide the flow for both culinary 

and secondary water. 

 

Even though there is no secondary system requirements in vested or current laws, if the applicant is 

separating the culinary flow requirements of  MCC §8-12-46(B) and LUMC §16-19-5 from the irrigation 

flow requirements, then conditions regarding the service of the secondary company may be necessary.  

 

Fire Protection.  The development should comply with the International Fire Code and the 2006 

Wildland Urban Interface Code
18

. Fire controls are administered by the Mountain Green Fire Protection 

District Chief. 

 

Sewer System.  Sewage will be provided by the Mountain Green Sewer Improvement District. They have 

provided a conditional will serve letter for the proposal. The applicant should adhere to the sewer districts 

requirements for approval. The County should not condition approval on the specific requirements of the 

district lest those requirements change and it be construed that the County is enforcing inapplicable 

requirements, but the County should condition approval on the general premise that the District’s needs 

are met. 

 

Storm Water. Storm water plans have been received, but were received too late for a more adequate 

review by the County Engineer (received 8/1/13) for this review. Storm water calcs are usually a function 

of final approval and should not hold up a decision on preliminary approval. A preliminary review 

indicates that the proposal to use existing detention facilities is likely sufficient to serve phases 5 and 6 of 

Rollins Ranch, but we are specifically concerned that there will be no more system capacity for phases 7 

and 8, which is owned by another owner. This may indeed be the understanding of all owners of phases 5-

8, and is a private issue for them to work out. However, staff feel it is important to enter our 

understanding of the issue into record here. A finding to this extent is provided with staff’s 

recommendation below.  

 

Utilities. The County has received will serve letters from Rocky Mountain Power, Mountain Green Sewer 

Improvement District, and Cottonwood Mutual Water Company. We do not have a will serve letter from 

Questar for this project, and the applicant should propose a heating plan for the development.  

                                                 
16

 See MCC §8-5I 
17

 AGEC Report Dated Nov. 15, 2005 
18

 The project is not exempt from the requirements of the 2006 Urban Wildland Interface Code, as can be seen on 

Exhibit G of this report.  



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 6 5 

App. # 12.100 
Aug 2, 2013 

 

The construction drawings indicate that service lines will be extended to each lot. A street light is also 

being proposed, in compliance with the requirements of Exhibit L-1 of the development agreement. The 

design of the streetlights should adhere to the standards therein. Operations and maintenance of the 

streetlights is the responsibility of the HOA.  

 

REVIEWS 

 

Planning and Development Services Review.   The Morgan County Planning and Development Service 

Department has completed their review of the subdivision application and has issued a recommendation 

for approval of the Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 6, application #12.100, with the following 

comments: 

 

1. The proposal complies with the Morgan County 2010 General Plan. 

2. The proposal complies with zoning regulation requirements. 

3. The proposal generally complies with the 2006 subdivision regulations. 

4. The proposal generally complies with the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement. 

5. There are changes/revisions for the development that should be addressed in the final plat review. 

The current proposal is sufficient for preliminary plat approval, provided that all conditions listed 

in this report are adhered to.  

 

Engineering Review Comments.    

 

We received our blue-lined check prints yesterday and have checked the revised Rollins Ranch Phase 6 

drawings.  Most issues mentioned in our April 8, 2013 review memo were addressed.  We recommend 

approval subject to the following changes and clarifications: 

 

1. The proper roadway cross-section is shown, but the park strip is labeled as 5.5’.  The correct 

width is 6’. 

2. The right-of-way slope easement requested in item 16 of our previous review has not been 

included in the revised drawings. 

3. The keyed notes need to be consistent throughout the drawings.  Some note numbers do not 

coincide between sheets (i.e. street light & handicap ramps). 

4. We received the storm water calculations this morning and are in the process of evaluating them 

for accuracy.  Any preliminary approval should be conditioned upon engineering acceptance of 

the proposed grading and drainage plan. 

5. Geologic restrictions need to be mentioned in accordance with the County’s geologic ordinance 

for the soil types coinciding with the potential problem areas. 

6. The proposed grading is a major earthwork operation that should not be left as a responsibility of 

individual building contractors.  The earthwork for the proposed design should be done by the 

developer with a competent contractor skilled in earthwork operations to insure conformance with 

the design elevations and grades.  Approval should be subject to our final approval of the final 

grading plans. 

 

County Surveyor Comments. Relined comments from the County Surveyor are attached
19

. They are more 

relevant to the final plat review then they are to preliminary at this time, but at the developer’s request we 

have made them available. The County Surveyor has indicated that preliminary plat considerations have 

been provided with this proposal. 

 

                                                 
19

 See Exhibit D of this Report 



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 6 6 

App. # 12.100 
Aug 2, 2013 

Fire Chief Comments. The District Fire Chief has indicated that hydrant placement in this subdivision is 

satisfactory.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends approval of the Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 6, applications #12.100, 

subject to the conditions below. It is important to note that at the developer’s request most of these 

conditions also encompass final plat/plan approval requirements:  

 

1. That all outsourced consultant services fees are paid in full prior to application for final plat.  

2. That any outstanding taxes for the property are paid prior to application for final plat. 

3. That all existing easements and/or utility lines as indicated on the title report are provided for on 

the final plat. 

4. That an updated title report is submitted with the final plat application, and that the description of 

the plat boundaries shall match the description in the report.  

5. That inasmuch as phase 5 does not contain the percentage of open space area as shown in the 

concept plan of the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement, phase 5 plat shall only be recorded 

after phase 6 plat, which contains the open space immediately north of phase 5.  

6. That for addressing clarity and plat/construction drawings consistency, the street named 6200 

North shall be renamed to Lasso Lane or another approved name.  

7. There appear to be several “copy/paste” errors in the notes on the plat that need to be revised or 

removed as noted on the bluelined drawings reviewed by the County Planner on July 31, 2013.  

8. That revisions are made so that the final plat is submitted with the verbatim note from §2.9 of the 

Rollins Ranch Development Agreement.  

9. That prior to final plat approval a signed and notarize acknowledgement from Browning Arms is 

submitted that acknowledges that §2.10 of the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement has be 

satisfied in a manner that meets their needs.  

10. That all residential building envelopes and public utility easement lines are clearly demarked and 

such demarcations are appropriately provided for in the line legend of the final plat; and that all 

residential building envelopes are designed to not include any areas deemed “unbuildable.” 

11. That the final plat includes a signature block for the County Surveyor that says the following: 
 

MORGAN COUNTY SURVEYOR 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE MORGAN COUNTY SURVEYORS OFFICE HAS REVIEWED THIS PLAT FOR 
MATHEMATICAL CORRECTNESS, SECTION CORNER DATA AND FOR HARMONY WITH LINES AND 

MONUMENTS ON RECORD IN THE MORGAN COUNTY OFFICES.  THE APPROVAL OF THIS PLAT BY THE 

MORGAN COUNTY SURVEYOR DOES NOT RELIEVE THE LICENSED LAND SURVEYOR WHO EXECUTES 
THIS PLAT FROM THE RESPONSIBILITIES AND/FOR LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED THEREWITH. 

 

SIGNED THIS ____ DAY OF ________________, 2013 
 

_______________________________________________ 

MORGAN COUNTY SURVEYOR 
 

12. That the final plat provides all of the surveyor’s corrections as provided in Exhibit D of this 

report.  

13. That a signed notarized Public Improvements Agreement shall be required prior to final plat 

recording if public improvements are not installed/completed prior to plat recording, pursuant to 

§16-18-9(D)(5) of the 2006 Subdivision Ordinance. 

14. That inasmuch as the Mountain Green Sewer Improvement District and Rocky Mountain Power 

have given conditional will serve letters for the proposal, approval of the preliminary plat is 

conditioned on the fulfillment of the various requirements of those entities. Failure to comply 

may result in voidance of preliminary plat approval. 



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 6 7 

App. # 12.100 
Aug 2, 2013 

15. That a “will serve” letter is submitted from Questar Gas; or that and alternative building heating 

plan is proposed for the units in the development.  

16. That a revised “will serve” letter is received from the Cottonwoods Mutual Water Company that 

indicates that all water rights/shares necessary to serve the development have been received and 

that the company currently has sufficient “wet water” to provide for the development pursuant to 

the requirements of MCC §8-12-46(B) and LUMC §16-19-5; and that irrigation provisions are 

provided for the same (either by the culinary company or optional secondary).  

17. That a street signage plan is submitted with the final plat application. 

18. That streetlight standards shall comply with Exhibit L-1 of the Rollins Ranch Development 

Agreement. Operation and maintenance of the streetlights shall be the responsibility of the HOA.  

19. That a geologic hazards analysis is conducted for the proposal and submitted with final plat 

submittal with all other relevant and related documents that conforms to the requirements of 

MCC §8-5I. Every lot within a "geologic hazards study area" as defined by County Code shall 

have a buildable area safe for the intended use. Each buildable area shall also have access from 

the nearest existing public or private street which is free of unreasonable and unacceptable 

geologic hazards. Any geologic hazards which must be mitigated in order to provide a buildable 

area and acceptable and reasonable access must be mitigated prior to the issuance of a building 

permit. 

20. That the developer’s geotechnical engineer provide an updated memo addressing the additional 

requirements of MCC 8-5I that were not more fully addressed in the November 16, 2006 

geotechnical report, and cooperate with the developer’s geologist, as may be applicable.  

21. That a geologic hazards scoping meeting shall be required prior to final plat application with the 

applicant’s geologist and geotechnical engineer, pursuant to MCC 8-5I-8.  

22. That all site grading shall be done in conformance with the approved plans, as stamped by the 

County Engineer, and shall be wholly contained onsite. No truck traffic mitigation plan has been 

presented therefore no truck traffic shall be permitted on public roads. Earthwork shall be 

conducted by the developer with a competent contractor skilled in earthwork operations to insure 

conformance with the design elevations and grades. All work shall be influenced by a licensed 

geologist and geotechnical engineer in conformance with any geologic hazards and geotechnical 

reporting, as may be applicable in MCC 8-5I.  

23. That a note is placed in the final plat that indicates that large amounts of fill may be found on 

various lots in the subdivision and that further geotechnical considerations may be necessary prior 

to building permit issuance.  

24. That bonding separate from public improvement guarantees shall be required for the reclamation 

and revegetation of all major earthwork permissions prior to the commencement or beginning of 

construction, and that an engineer’s cost estimate shall be submitted with the final plat 

application.  

25.  That letters of consent and approval from all neighboring land owners that are being encroached 

upon by the major earthwork is submitted to the County prior to the final plan approval. 

26. That a more specific revegetation plan is presented for all disturbed areas with final plat 

submittal. 

27. That storm water calculations are provided with final construction drawings for the County 

Engineer’s review that demonstrate that there is sufficient storm water facilities provided to 

appropriately serve the proposed development. 

28. That a detail drawing is provided for the proposed cross-gutter, and that it is 5’ wide.  

29. That the discrepancies in the provided roadway cross sections are corrected (park strip width).  

30. That all comments and corrections requested by all county reviewers are appropriately addressed 

to the satisfaction of the respective reviewer with the submittal of the final plat application. 

31. That noncompliance with the conditions herein may result in voidance of preliminary plat 

approval, and may also result in the inability to obtain final plat approval. 

32. That all other local, state, and federal laws are upheld.  



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 6 8 

App. # 12.100 
Aug 2, 2013 

 

This recommendation is based on the following findings: 

 

1. The nature of the subdivision is in conformance with the current and future land uses of the area. 

2. The proposal complies with the Morgan County 2010 General Plan. 

3. The proposal complies with zoning requirements of the RR-1 zone as influenced by the PRUD 

and Rollins Ranch Development Agreement. 

4. The proposal generally complies with the 2006 subdivision regulations. 

5. The proposal generally complies with the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement. 

6. That requiring the simultaneous recording of phases 5 and 6 as they are being currently proposed 

will avoid the potential lack of platting of and preservation of required open space, and is 

supported by §4.2A of the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement to provide for an orderly 

development of the project.  

7. That it appears to be the intent of the applicant to shift responsibility for all unplatted ratios of 

open space areas, as required in Exhibit D of the Rollins Ranch Development Agreement, onto 

the different owner(s) of phases 6-8. This is a private issue for those owners to address with each 

other as may be necessary. 

8. That it inasmuch as it appears with this proposal that there may not be sufficient storm drain 

system capacity to accommodate phases 7-8 it appears to be the intent of the applicant to shift 

responsibility for new drainage facilities onto the owner of phases 7-8 at the time those phases are 

platted. This is a private issue for those owners to address with each other as may be necessary.  

9. That MCC §8-5I indicates certain geologic units as hazard study areas, and requires that all 

development within them is free from unreasonable or unacceptable geologic hazards.  

10. That final plat approval and the approval of the proposed grading and earthwork plans constitute 

approval of the earthwork without need for other specific permits, pursuant to MCC §8-8-

7(B)(4)(h). 

11. The listed conditions will bring the proposal into compliance with current requirements, and 

assist in the successful creation of a final plat application. 

 

MODEL MOTION   

 

Sample Motion for a Positive Recommendation – “I move we forward a positive recommendation to the 

County Council of the Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 6, applications #12.100 subject to the 

findings and conditions listed in the August 2, 2013 staff report, and as modified by the conditions and 

findings below:” 

 

1. List any additional findings and conditions… 

 

Sample Motion for a Negative Recommendation – “I move we forward a negative recommendation to the 

County Council of the Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 6, applications #12.100 subject to the 

following conditions: 

 

1. List any additional findings… 

      

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 

Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan 

Exhibit B: Future Land Use and Zoning Maps 

Exhibit C: Deleted 

Exhibit D: County Surveyors Redlines of Draft Final Plats 

Exhibit E: County Planner’s Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plat(s) 



 

 
Rollins Ranch Preliminary Plat for Phase 6 9 

App. # 12.100 
Aug 2, 2013 

Exhibit F: Letter from Mountain Green Fire Protection District Chief 

Exhibit G: Urban Wildland Interface Exemption Map 

Exhibit H: Earthwork Plan 



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan

cewert
Typewritten Text



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit A: Rollins Ranch Concept Plan



RR-1 

Exhibit B: Future Land Use and Zoning Maps; Zone Map 
 

A-20 

R1-20 

MD RR-10 

RR-1 



Agricultural 

Village Low Density Residential 

Rural Residential 

Village Low Density Residential 

Village Residential 
4DUA 

Agricultural 

Business Park 

Exhibit B: Future Land Use and Zoning Maps; Future Land Use Map 
 



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit D: County Surveyor's Redlines of Draft Final Plats



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit D: County Surveyor's Redlines of Draft Final Plats



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit E: County Planner's Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plats



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit E: County Planner's Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plats



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit E: County Planner's Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plats



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit E: County Planner's Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plats



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit E: County Planner's Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plats



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit E: County Planner's Bluelines of Preliminary and Draft Final Plats



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit F: Letter from Mountain Green Fire Protection District Chief



Rural Residential 

Village Residential 
4DUA Business Park 

Exhibit G: Urban Wildland Interface Exemption Map 
 

Non-Exempt 

Exempt 



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit H: Earthwork Plan (Mass Grading)



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit H: Earthwork Plan (Mass Grading)



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit H: Earthwork Plan (Mass Grading)



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit H: Earthwork Plan (Mass Grading)



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit H: Earthwork Plan (Mass Grading)



cewert
Text Box
Exhibit H: Earthwork Plan (Mass Grading)



 

 
Text Amendment -- Plat Amendments to Lots Created by Flexible Subdivision or Zoning Ordinances now Repealed 1 

Application #13.067 

August 2, 2013 

 

 

Planning and Development Services 

48 West Young Street 

Morgan, UT  84050 

(801) 845-4015    

 

STAFF REPORT 

August 2, 2013

 

To: Morgan County Planning Commission 

Business Date:  August 8, 2013 

 

From: Charles Ewert, MPA 

 Planning and Development Services Director 

 

Re: County Initiated Text Amendment Regarding Plat Amendments to Lots Created by 

Flexible Subdivision or Zoning Ordinances now Repealed 

 

Application No.: 13.067 

Applicant: Morgan County Planning Commission 

Request: To amend Morgan County Code Sections 8-7 to allow for the 

amendment of subdivision lots that were created by now repeal 

flexible subdivision provisions 

 
SUMMARY & BACKGROUND 
A recent request for a Future Land Use Map Amendment ( FLUMA) for one lot in the Surrey 
Lane Estates PRUD Subdivision led the Planning Commission to discuss the current non-
conforming nature of lots created by now-repealed PRUD ordinances. The FLUMA applicant 
has a three acre lot in the RR-5 zone, which requires lots to have a minimum of 5 acres. The 
three acre lot was legally created by use of the PRUD ordinance, and has an existing home on it, 
and therefore certain entitlements exist; however, the lot has building restrictions on the rear of 
the lot for open space purposes, and these open space restrictions were the reason the lot was 
granted lesser area requirements. The owner desires to amend the restrictions, but there is not 
currently adopted standard that would enable the change. This lot is one lot of many created by 
the PRUD ordinance that could face permanent restrictions.  
 
With this premise, the Planning Commission discussed the many other lot owners in the County 
who may find themselves in a situation where they desire to make changes to their property or 
use it in a different manner than allowed by the PRUD who cannot because all provision 
enabling the changes have since been repealed. To provide for this issue the Planning 
Commission requested a text amendment to enable lots to be altered under the same provisions 
that created them – or in essence “vested” in previous subdivision or zoning standards that were 
applicable at the time their lot was created.  
 
Staff have provided the language in Exhibit “A” to enable this.  
 



 

 
Text Amendment -- Plat Amendments to Lots Created by Flexible Subdivision or Zoning Ordinances now Repealed 2 

Application #13.067 

August 2, 2013 

 

ANALYSIS 

 

General Plan.  The 2010 General Plan recommends flexible ordinances to encourage the 

preservation of open spaces
1
. Staff are currently working on determining the County’s desires for 

a flexible subdivision ordinance. In the mean time, providing this ordinance change will assist 

with a more flexible application of code by extending former flexible standards to existing non-

conforming lots.  

 

Land Use Ordinance Provisions.  The proposed text amendment, and other text in the 

ordinance that is being affected by it is attached in Exhibit “A.” 

 

Procedures for adopting amendments. Morgan County Code (MCC) sets out the Planning 

Commission’s responsibility for adopting and amending the land use requirements: 

 
MCC 8-3-3(B) 

The Planning Commission may instruct staff to study and make recommendations for amendments 

to this title in response to changes in policy or conditions generally within the County. Staff shall 

forward a recommended amendment to the Planning Commission for their consideration. The 

Planning Commission shall review and make recommendation to the County Council regarding 

the proposed amendment pursuant to Subsection8-3-4(D) of this Title. 

 

MCC 8-3-4(D) 

Planning Commission Review and Recommendation: Upon receiving a recommendation from 

staff regarding an amendment to this Title or the Zoning Map, and after holding the 

required public hearing, the Planning Commission shall review the amendment and 

prepare its recommendation. The Planning Commission may recommend approval, approval with 

modifications, or denial of the proposed amendment and shall submit its recommendation to the 

County Council for review and decision. The planning commission shall recommend adoption of a 

proposed amendment only when the following findings are made: 

1. The proposed amendment is in accordance with the County’s General Plan, goals, and 

policies of the County. 

2. Changed or changing conditions make the proposed amendment reasonably necessary 

to carry out the purposes stated in this title. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission forward a positive recommendation to the 

County Council for the proposed land use regulations text amendments regarding plat 

amendments to lots created by flexible subdivision or zoning ordinances now repealed, 

application 13.067, based on the following findings: 

 

1. That the amendments are necessary to clarify the administration of plat amendment for 

non-conforming lots. 
2. The proposed amendment is in accordance with the County’s General Plan, goals, and policies of 

the County. 

3. Changed or changing conditions make the proposed amendment reasonably necessary to carry out 

the purposes stated in this title. 

4. That the amendments are not detrimental to the County’s health, safety, and welfare. 

                                                 
1
 See 2010 General Plan Pg. 14-15 



 

 
Text Amendment -- Plat Amendments to Lots Created by Flexible Subdivision or Zoning Ordinances now Repealed 3 

Application #13.067 

August 2, 2013 

 

 

MODEL MOTION   

 

Sample Motion for a Positive Recommendation – “I move we forward a positive 

recommendation to the County Council for the proposed land use regulations text amendments 

regarding plat amendments to lots created by flexible subdivision or zoning ordinances now 

repealed, application 13.067, based on the findings presented in the Staff report dated August 2, 

2013:”  

 

1. List any additional findings and conditions… 

 

Sample Motion for a Negative Recommendation – “I move we forward  a negative 

recommendation for the proposed land use regulations text amendments regarding regarding plat 

amendments to lots created by flexible subdivision or zoning ordinances now repealed, 

application 13.067, based on the following findings:” 

 

1. List any additional findings… 

  



 

 
Text Amendment -- Plat Amendments to Lots Created by Flexible Subdivision or Zoning Ordinances now Repealed 4 

Application #13.067 

August 2, 2013 

 

Exhibit A: Text Amendment Regarding Amendments to Lots Created by 

Flexible Subdivision or Zoning Ordinances now Repealed 
All sections of code not specifically addressed herein shall remain unchanged.  

 

 

8-7-4: NONCONFORMING LOTS PROHIBITED AFTER ADOPTION: 
 
After adoption of this title, nNo lot or subdivision having less than the minimum width, depth, frontage, and 
area, yard depth (setback), building envelope, or open space area required in the district in which it is 
located may be created, except as may be expressly allowed elsewhere in this Title, nor shall any land 
use approvals or building permits be issued for construction uses on such lots.nonconforming lots created 
subsequent to adoption of this title.  

 
Any lot legally platted within the bounds of a subdivision that was created under the terms of a now 
repealed PRUD Subdivision Ordinance, PUD Overlay Zone, MPDR District, or other repealed zoning or 
subdivision ordinance intended to provide flexibility from the required minimum width, depth, area, yard 
depth (setback), building envelope, or open space area, may amend the width, depth, area, yard depth 
(setback), building envelope, or open space area of the subdivision lot pursuant to the minimum 
standards that provided such flexibility in the ordinance that governed its creation. Current procedural 
requirements for plat amendments shall apply.  

 

 

Comment [CE1]: Does allowing for this negate 

the purpose of repealing the more flexible 

provisions?  



 

Page 1 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA  

Thursday, June 27, 2013 

Morgan County Council Room 

6:30 PM 

 
 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that the Morgan County Planning Commission will meet at 

the above time and date at the Morgan County Courthouse, Council Chambers, 48 West Young 

St, Morgan, Utah. The agenda is as follows: 

 

1. Call to order – prayer. 

2. Approval of agenda. 

3. Declaration of conflicts of interest. 

4. Public Comment 

 

Legislative Items 

5. Public Hearing/Discussion  
a. Amend County Code to Repeal the CD Zone 

b. Waterspring LLC Rezone 

c. Jaques Rezone 

6. Decision:  Waterspring LLC Rezone  

7. Decision:  Jaques Rezone 

8. Decision:  Amend County Code to Repeal the CD Zone 

9. Public Hearing/Discussion/Decision:  Johnson Future Land Use Map Amendment 

 

10. Staff Report.  

a. Next scheduled Planning Commission 

11. Approval of minutes from June 13, 2013 

12. Adjourn. 

 

 

  



 

Page 2 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

1. Call to order – prayer. 

 

Chairman Haslam welcomed everyone and also welcomed David Sawyer to the Planning 

Commission.  Member Sawyer will replace Member Alvin Lundgren. 

 

Prayer was offered by Member Newton. 

 

 

2. Approval of agenda. 

  

Member Sessions moved to approve the agenda.  Second by Member Newton.  The vote 

was unanimous.  The motion carried. 

 

3. Declaration of conflicts of interest. 

 

 There were no conflicts of interest declared. 

 

 

4. Public Comment 

 

Member Erickson moved to open public comment.  Second by Member Stephens.  The 

vote was unanimous. The motion carried. 

 

There were none. 

 

Member Sessions moved to close public comment.  Second by Member Newton.  The 

vote was unanimous.  The motion carried. 

 

 

Legislative Items 

5. Public Hearing/Discussion  

a. Amend County Code to Repeal the CD Zone 

Charlie presented his staff report. 

He noted recent events and development in the CD zone has given staff and County 

Council indication that the CD zone may actually not be doing what it is suppose to 

be doing which is create a town center in the central village of Mountain Green.  The 

County Council has acknowledged that it is not actually functioning as they desire it 

to function and has directed staff to move forward with a repeal of that zone.   In 

repeal of that zone, staff realizes that there are other properties in the County that 

have already been zoned to the CD zone.  He noted that in the repeal of the CD zone, 

those that have not actually exercised the entitlement, won't automatically have 

entitlement under that zone.  You either (a) restrict any use of the property which 



 

Page 3 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

could be argued as a constitutional taking, or (b) essentially grandfather  them under 

the terms of the existing ordinance.    

Given the Council's directive to repeal the CD zone, staff wanted to take the path of 

highest maximization and determine exactly how we help the county ensure that 

some of the difficulties they have realized through the execution of the other 

developments in the CD zone don't get executed again.   

 

In doing this staff recognizes two properties that have not had entitlements granted 

under the CD zone, Dee Jaques property and Water Springs LLC; Bart Smith 

property.  Mr. Ewert pointed out the locations of these properties on a map. 

He noted Mr. Jaques has a residential home on his property with a few accessories 

and Water Springs is currently a vacant property with no apparent entitlements.   

 

Issues with the CD zone: 

 Who is really authorized to be land use authority? 

 Submitting a development plan and executing through a development 

agreement. 

          

         He noted Council did not say to go re-zone either of these properties the council 

asked to repeal the CD zone.  As he evaluated that he tried to figure out the best way 

to get the CD zone repealed without having any dangling unintentional consequences 

in doing so.  He noted this was the best plan staff believed would provide for that; 

certainly there are other ways to do this, and one is to not re-zone the property.  

Actual administration of the CD zone is fairly impractical for a two acre piece of 

property.  One option is to expand the CS zone onto the two properties.  The reason 

they did not go with that option is that County Council has also given staff a separate 

directive to re-write the use allowances of that zone and every other commercial 

code that the county has. Staff is currently in the process of re-writing all the 

commercial zones to gear them towards more commercial friendly development and 

streamlining processes allowing for less robust process to get something executed. 

 

 He noted in order to give the property owner a zone that complies with their current 

lot size and make the property conforming, staff would recommend an RR-5 zone.  

He noted the CD zone is not going to be gone forever.  The General Plan of Morgan 

County recommends a town center zone, and right now the CD zone is suppose to be 

that, but considering it is not working the County Council has given the directive to 

repeal and re-tool that zone.  

  

 Member Sessions asked if Mr. Ewert talked to the landowners before noticing these 

re-zones.  Mr. Ewert stated staff did not. 

 She asked about the Nye’s property.  Mr. Ewert noted that there are two properties 

which still have entitlement under the CD zone; Nye’s is one of those properties.  It 



 

Page 4 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

is excluded from the Johnson development plan and there are existing entitlements 

that have been granted under the CD zone on this property.   The other property is 

the Aspen Meadows property.  If these properties are re-zoned they could potential 

be zoned into non-conformity. 

 

 Member Sessions noted that staff has stated they have been asked to re-write all the 

commercial zones; she noted she does not remember that directive.  Mr. Ewert noted 

that they were asked to streamline commercial processes to provide an environment 

that induces more economic development potential. He referred to Title 8, Chapter 5 

Article C there is a broad long 14 pages list of uses that are allowed and not allowed 

in the zones.   He believes council has asked to consolidate and condense.  

  

Member Sessions referred to the audio of the February 19, 2013 County Council in 

which this direction was given to eliminate the CD zone or at least make a 

recommendation.  Chairman Kelly stated this would not affect anyone who is 

currently zoned CD.  Mr. Ewert noted when he was working through his evaluations 

he did not see any other way that would actually satisfy the Council's desire to not 

have to deal with what was dealt with in the Johnson property.   

 

 Mr. Newton asked what the time line is for writing all these commercial zones.  Mr. 

Ewert noted is that it is lengthier than originally anticipated.  He is hoping he can 

have something in front of the County Council within the next two months. 

 

 Mr. Erickson asked if Mr. Ewert could give some other examples of why this is 

something that is not working for the County. 

 

 Charlie referred to all the red-line strikeouts in the packet, particularly 8-5D-18 

Planned Unit Development.   

 The County has broad discretion – mixed use/residential is not defined. 

   

 Member Sessions recommended gutting the existing CD zone and re-writing it.  

 

Mr. Ewert noted that by this coming to the Planning Commission, possibly they can 

flush out ideas that maybe staff has not thought about.   

 

Broad discussion took place on the following: 

 Delays due to re-write of commercial. 

 Possibilities to property owners if staff was to gut the zone.  

 RR -5 being detrimental to land owners.   

 

 

b. Water spring LLC Rezone 



 

Page 5 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

  

Bart Smith, Water springs LLC – surprised when he got the notice that the county 

was going to initiate this.  CD is the maximum use compared to the RR-5 which is 

the minimum conforming use.  He understands what the County is trying to do.   He 

likes what Member Sessions has suggested; rather than throw the entire CD zone 

out, maybe overhaul it.  Put the zone into a moratorium until it can be re-written. 

Only advantage he could see going to the RR-5 is if he could get the assessor to 

reassess his property with this zone, but noted she does not do that, she assesses on 

potential use.  He noted there is no income coming in so taxes are delinquent on this 

property.   

 

Chairman Haslam asked what Mr. Smith's preference was.  He said if he could get 

the assessor to asses it as a 5 acre parcel that has $1000 tax value versus $10000 in 

taxes he would prefer that. 

He noted that he believed the best interest would be to get it to where it needs to be. 

Possibly re-write the zone.  He noted if it is zoned to RR-5 he could sell it and 

someone could buy it and build a house right down in the middle of the town center 

which doesn’t make sense.  

 

Mr. Smith noted during the Olympics there was 4 feet of fill brought in.  Under the 

CD he has to have a development plan just to grade it down.  Under the CS zone he 

just has to come in and get a conditional use permit. With that understanding he 

would prefer to go under the CS zone which is consistent with the adjoining zone. 

 

Dee Jaques – Mr. Jakes noted he does not care whether it is zoned RR-1 or 

commercial but he does have people looking at it and he is in limbo selling it until 

this is settled.  Commercial is what he requested five years ago and he has paid his 

due and pays taxes on that zone. 

 

Member Sessions stated in essence, all commercial is tied up.  The perception is that 

the County is anti-business.  Right now it appears that all commercial options are 

taken off the table for developers and she does not believe it is good policy to tackle 

all commercial zones at once.   

 

 CS zone was discussed. 

 Excavation requirements in the different zones were discussed. Charlie 

suggested maybe adding a line item for excavation. 

 Negative and positive aspects of zoning to CS were discussed. 

 Noticing was discussed. 

 

Member Sessions moved to open public hearing. Second by Member Erickson 

The vote was unanimous. The motion carried. 



 

Page 6 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

 

Blair Larsen – noted he was on the Mtn. Green DAT and Envision Morgan 

committee.  If this was on the other foot and it was someone other than the County 

who wanted to get this zone change it would not go as quickly as it appears this is 

going. 

Mr. Larsen referred to the Morgan County General Plan, page 3 under existing 

zoning. He also referred to page 12 regarding town centers. 

 

Ty Eldridge – Not a big fan of the central development but also not a fan of re-

zoning people's property.  He noted if they want to re-zone they should request it 

themselves. 

 

Member Sessions moved to close the public hearing.  Second by Member 

Erickson.  The vote was unanimous. The motion carried. 

 

 

c. Jaques Rezone 

 

The discussion under Water springs LLC encompassed this rezone discussion item 

as well. 

 

 

6. Decision:  Watersprings LLC Rezone  

 

Member Sessions moved to forward a positive recommendation to the County Council 

for the County initiated rezone request for Morgan County/Watersprings, LLC Rezone 

Request, application #13.059, rezoning approximately 5.48 acres of property at 

approximately 4960 West Old Highway Road from CD to CS, based on the findings 

listed in the staff report dated June 19, 2013, and as modified by changing in finding #4  

the (2) references of RR-5 to CS’s  and request staff to bring forward a text amendment 

to add excavation as a conditional use in the commercial land use table.   

1. Because of ambiguous, vague or contradictory provisions, the CD Zone has proven 

impractical to appropriately administer. 

 

2. Because of the aforementioned flaws in the CD zone, it is found that the CD zone does 

not comply with the “Town Center” designation in the 2010 Morgan County General 

Plan, in that “Town Center projects should be designed to provide maximum 

compatibility with surrounding land uses.  Increased aesthetic and architectural design 

requirements and focus on streetscape creation are paramount to the development of a 

Town Center area”.  

3. By removing the CD designation from the property the County can more 



 

Page 7 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

appropriately facilitate the re-creation of a new “Town Center” zone? 

4. By rezoning to the CS zone the County is preserving the property owner’s 

potential to develop under the terms of the CS zone by providing a zone most 

compatible with the current property configuration and uses, and other current 

uses in the vicinity.   

Second by Member Stephens. 

 

Chairman called for debate 

 

Member Sessions stated that she does not want to do something detrimental to the land owner 

and wants to allow them to do something with their land while this zone is being re-written. 

 

Member Erickson stated if we change this to CS he did not believe anyone in the room realizes 

the impact of that.  He does not want to make a CS decision that gives them a bad circumstance 

for them to deal with.  Certainly there is the option for any landowner to come in and make the 

request themselves.  He does not like to say that we just arbitrarily killed the CD process as the 

County Council has asked.  He would rather see the CD zone put on hold and therefore no one 

can deal with that zone until the county revises CD policy.  It certainly needs to be fixed and he 

heard Mr. Ewert state that could probably be done in two months given the priority from the 

County Council.   He believes Mr. Larsen said it best; leave it alone.  Let the individual property 

owner deal with it as they can best decide to deal with it. 

 

Member Sessions stated she agrees with Member Erickson, however zoning allows Mr. Smith to 

excavate.  Mr. Erickson noted it does because he has the option to come in and re-zone if he 

wants to CS.   

 

There was discussion of dealing with the CD zone universally.   

 

Chairman suspended the rules temporarily to allow Mr. Smith to make comment. 

 

Bart Smith - noted the CS zone works good to accommodate what they want to do right now to 

excavate.  If the town center comes in he would be inclined to maybe rezone the property to the 

new zone; this will save him a step. 

 

 

The Chairman called for a Vote. 

 

The vote was not unanimous with Members Stephens, Sessions, Newton, Sawyer for and 

Member Erickson against.  The motion carried with the vote of four to one. 

 

 



 

Page 8 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

 

 

 

7. Decision:  Jaques Rezone 

 

Member Sessions moved to forward a positive recommendation to the County Council 

for the County initiated rezone request for the Morgan County/Dee Jaque Property, 

application #13.060, rezoning approximately 2.45 acres of property at approximately 

5190 West Old Highway Road from CD to CS, based on the findings listed in the staff 

report dated June 19, 2013, and as modified by changing in finding #4  the (2) 

references of RR-1 to CS’s  and request staff to bring forward a text amendment to add 

excavation as a conditional use in the commercial land use table.   

 

1. Because of ambiguous, vague or contradictory provisions, the CD Zone has proven 

impractical to appropriately administer. 

 

2. Because of the aforementioned flaws in the CD zone, it is found that the CD zone does 

not comply with the “Town Center” designation in the 2010 Morgan County General 

Plan, in that “Town Center projects should be designed to provide maximum 

compatibility with surrounding land uses.  Increased aesthetic and architectural design 

requirements and focus on streetscape creation are paramount to the development of a 

Town Center area”.  

3. By removing the CD designation from the property the County can more 

appropriately facilitate the re-creation of a new “Town Center” zone. 

4. By rezoning to the CS zone the County is preserving the property owner’s 

potential to develop under the terms of the CS zone by providing a zone most 

compatible with the current property configuration and uses, and other current 

uses in the vicinity.   

 

Second by Member Sawyer. 

 

Chairman called for debate 

 

Member Sessions stated her reason would be the same as stated in the Water Springs 

application. 

 

Member Sawyer noted this allows the property owner to do what he would like and in two 

months we may have something from staff.  Believed this protected the property owner for 

the time being. 

 



 

Page 9 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

Member Erickson noted his comments would be the same as stated in the Water Springs 

discussion. 

 

Member Newton noted he had concern with this only because of which Mr. Jaques stated was 

a potential buyer. 

 

 

The Chairman called for a vote. 

 

The vote was not unanimous with Members Stephens, Sessions, Newton, Sawyer for and 

Member Erickson against.  The motion carried with the vote of four to one. 

 

 

8. Decision:  Amend County Code to Repeal the CD Zone 

 

Member Sawyer moved to forward a positive recommendation to the County Council for 

the proposed CD zone repeal amendment, application 13.011, as presented in the staff 

report and based on the findings listed in the staff report dated June 21, 2013.  

Second by Member Sessions 

 

The Chairman called for debate. 

 

Member Erickson asked if it is repealed then what do owners such as Nye's Glass and the 

Johnson property use as a tool.   Charlie noted that existing CD properties (Nye’s glass and 

Johnson property) have entitled rights.  It cannot be expanded or improved.  

 

The vote was not unanimous with Members Stephens, Sessions, Newton, and Sawyer 

for and Member Erickson against.  The motion carried with the vote of four to one. 

 

 

9. Public Hearing/Discussion/Decision:  Johnson Future Land Use Map Amendment 

 

Member Sessions moved to open a public hearing.  Second by Member Newton. 

The vote was unanimous. The motion carried. 

 

Jeff Nielsen – Live one lot away from the Johnsons and has come to support them in their 

request to build the outbuilding they would like to build.  They would be the neighbors directly 

impacted.  They do not mind having this building on the property. 

 

Member Stephens moved to close the public hearing.  Second by Member Sawyer. 

The vote was unanimous. The motion carried. 

 



 

Page 10 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

Mr. Johnson presented the planning commission with a handout (Please see attached exhibit C) 

His understanding is that if the PRUD was still in force this would not be a problem, if they 

were zoned RR-5 this would not be a problem, or even if they were still vested in the PRUD 

this would not be a problem.  The only scenario where this would not be allowed is the current 

situation where they were in a PRUD and are not in one anymore; it is an unattended 

consequence. 

 

Member Sessions noted in driving by it appears the building has already started.  She asked 

Mr. Johnson to comment on that.  

Mr. Johnson noted it is an outbuilding and he did not know he had to have a building permit 

for it.  Once he found that out he stopped at that point and come to get a building permit and 

then found out the current situation. 

 

Member Sawyer noted one of the recommendations is that other properties be held to the same 

rules and asked if Mr. Johnson knew if any of them would have a problem.  Mr. Johnson noted 

from what he can tell there is no negative consequence.   

 

Member Sessions asked if Mr. Johnson was aware of the frontage requirement in the RR-1.  

She did not believe this would be a solution to the problem.  That is one of the perks of the 

PRUD is that you do not have to have the frontage requirement of the zone 

 

Mr. Johnson noted he does not care what zone is decided on; the only thing he cares about is 

being able to build his outbuilding. He noted he was not sure why this PRUD is not still vested 

even thought the ordinance was re-pealed.   

 

Charlie Ewert presented his staff report (Please see attached exhibit D)   

The County had a PRUD ordinance and that ordinance gave individuals flexibility; Surrey 

Estates was one of those. 

 

There was discussion on non-conforming use. 

 

Mr. Ewert noted another option is to write something simple in the County subdivision 

ordinance regarding existing PRUD being able to remain vested. 

 

Member Sawyer asked when the new flexible subdivision ordinance would be done.  Mr. 

Ewert noted when he can get 14 people to agree on something. 

 

Building envelopes were discussed.    

 

 

Member Sessions moved to postpone indefinitely the Matt Johnson Future Land Use 

Map Amendment, application #13.046, as presented in the June 21, 2013 staff report.  



 

Page 11 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

Second by Member Stephens.  

 

The Chairman called for debate. 

There was none. 

 

The vote was unanimous. The motion carried. 

 

Member Stephens moved to recommend staff to add an amendment to the code that 

will allow modifications to current PRUD’s while preserving the original parameters of 

the ordinance. Second by Member Erickson. 

 

The Chairman called for debate. 

There was none. 

 

The vote was unanimous. The motion carried. 

 

 

10. Staff Report.  

a. Next scheduled Planning Commission 

 

Charlie noted there would be a field trip for the Planning Commission and County 

Council to tour Snow Basin on July 9, 2013.   

 

It was decided that July 25th would be the next meeting if staff could confirm a 

quorum.  If not, August 8th would be the next meeting. 

 

 

 

11. Approval of minutes from June 13, 2013 

 

Member Erickson moved to approve the minutes of June 13, 2013 as typed.  Second by 

Member Newton.  The vote was unanimous. The motion carried. 

 

 

12. Adjourn. 

 

Member Sawyer moved to adjourn.  Second by Member Stephens. The vote was 

unanimous. The motion carried. 

 

 

 

  



 

Page 12 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

Exhibit A - Public Hearing/Discussion Waterspring LLC Re-zone 
 

 

STAFF REPORT 

June 19, 2013 
Planning and Development Services 

 

To: Morgan County Planning Commission 
Business Date:  6/27/13 
 

Prepared By: Ronda Kippen, Planning Technician 
 
Re: County Initiated Rezone of Waterspring, LLC Property 
Application No.: 13.059 
Applicant: Morgan County 
Project Location: Approximately 4960 West Old Highway Road 
Zoning: CD 
Acreage: 5.48 Acres 
Request: County initiated rezone of 5.48 acres of property located approximately at 4960 

West Old Highway Road from CD to RR-5. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The County Council has directed Staff to repeal the Central Development (CD) Zone due to ambiguous, 
vague or contradictory provisions that make the CD zone impractical to appropriately administer.  Staff 
is proposing to rezone the vacant property owned by Waterspring, LLC located at approximately 4960 
West Old Highway Road, also identified as Serial# 03-005-044-01.  Staff is recommending rezoning the 
subject property from the current CD zone to the RR-5 zone to ensure a zone most compatible with the 
current configuration and uses of the property, and other uses in the vicinity.  By rezoning the property 
to this zone the County will maximize the preservation of the land owner’s existing and established land 
use rights.  Once the Morgan County Code has been revised regarding commercial zones and uses, the 
County may move forward with a more appropriate zone that will help facilitate the creation of the 
“Town Center” area that has been identified in the 2010 Morgan County General Plan.  This rezone is 
only intended to as a “place holder” until the County can re-create a better “Town Center” zone. 
 
The property that has been identified to be rezoned to RR-5 is vacant ground adjacent to a variety of 
zones including agricultural, residential and commercial. In the event that there is a use that has been 
legally established prior to the County’s amendment to the zoning map; that use will be allowed to 
continue as long as it is not expanded or abandoned as defined by the County’s nonconforming use 
chapter Morgan County Code (MCC) 8-7-5. The recommended zone was selected in an attempt of 
creating as little non-conformity as possible.  
 
Staff are advising that because administration of the CD zone has proven detrimental to the County, 
rezoning the property to any other existing zone will help the County better comply with the goals and 



 

Page 13 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

objectives of the 2010 General Plan by providing the County time to re-create a new “Town Center” 
zone. Staff are not recommending a rezone to any other commercial zone at this time because of 
another directive from the County Council to modify all commercial zones to create more commercial 
development friendly processes, but because we are only in the preliminary stages in providing such 
modifications we cannot provide any concrete verification of how other commercial zones will affect the 
surrounding area. This recommendation is a conservative approach by staff to provide the Planning 
Commission with results that are verifiable by steering clear of the current unknowns of the ongoing 
commercial code re-write.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Planning Commission Responsibility. Pursuant to MCC 8-3-3, the Planning Commission shall review the 
[zoning map] amendment application and certify its recommendations concerning the proposed 
amendment to the governing body within forty five (45) days from receipt of the amendment 
application in a regularly scheduled meeting. The Planning Commission shall recommend adoption of a 
proposed amendment only where the following findings are made: 
 

1. The proposed amendment is in accord with the master plan of the County. 
2. Changed or changing conditions make the proposed amendment reasonably necessary to carry 

out the purposes of this title. 
 
 
General Plan. The first finding that the Planning Commission must make in order to make a positive 
recommendation for this rezone is that it is in accord with the master plan of the County. The 2010 
General Plan and accompanied Future Land Use Map (as amended) is the County’s master plan. The 
following are excerpts from the plan that may be relevant in evaluating this request (italics added for 
emphasis): 
 

One municipality (Morgan) and six village centers are located in Morgan County; Mountain 
Green, Peterson, Enterprise, Stoddard, Croydon, and Porterville. Most of these areas have 
identified future growth areas. The majority of future development in Morgan County is 
anticipated to occur in or near these areas. (Pg. 5-7) 

 
Both the text of the General Plan and the Future Land Use Map must be considered when making 
decisions about future development or redevelopment. (Pg. 7) 
 
Town Center projects should be designed to provide maximum compatibility with surrounding 
land uses.  Increased aesthetic and architectural design requirements and focus on streetscape 
creation are paramount to the development of a Town Center area. (Pg. 12) 

 
The CD zone anticipates that the Planning Commission and County Council has more discretionary ability 
to provide additional administrative development requirements to obtain optimal aesthetic controls in 
the CD zone than are actually enumerated in the code; however, administrative law does not support 
this. Such application of administrative discretion has resulted in cases of arbitrary decision making. In 



 

Page 14 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

other words, the attorneys have told us that when it comes to administering the law we can’t simply 
“make it up as we go.”   
 
Thus, it appears that the Planning Commission may find that the proposed rezone may conform to the 
intent of the County’s master planning efforts because the practical administration of the CD zone has 
inconsistencies that conflicting with the desired “Town Center” designation in the Mountain Green area, 
and should be removed from properties that are not currently vested in its rules.  
 
Zoning.  The Planning Commission should evaluate the request based on the potential changes in use 
and compatibility with existing conditions. To begin the evaluation, it is important to know the purpose 
of each zone and how they relate to each other.  
 
The purpose of the CD zone is as follows:  
The central development district zone is established to stimulate economic development by providing a 
unique planning environment for commercial and office development.  This district encourages creative 
development and site design for mixed use commercial, office and residential uses within “planned 
commercial centers” and is appropriately reserved for use within town and resort centers only.   
 
Despite the good intentions of this purpose, the actual administration of the CD zone has not yielded the 
best results due to administrative requirements that do not give the County the discretionary authority 
that the CD zone was intended to contemplate. The type of discretionary authority the CD contemplates 
reflects legislative authority, not administrative.  
 
The purposes of the RR-5 zone are as follows: 

 To promote and preserve in appropriate areas conditions favorable to large lot 
family life; 

 Maintaining a rural atmosphere; 

 The keeping of limited numbers of animals and fowl; and 

 Reduced requirements for public utilities, services and infrastructure. 

 These districts are intended to be primarily residential in character and protected 
from encroachment by commercial and industrial uses. 

 
The sizes and uses of properties adjacent to the subject property vary. To the east of the property there 
is gravel pit and has been zoned A-20.  Located south and east (across Old Highway Road) of the 
property, there are established commercial uses located in the Commercial Highway zone, a small area 
zoned RR-1 and A-20 as well as the Mountain Green Village PUD property that has been zoned Central 
Development, the development agreement for which was approved by the County Council in their June 
18, 2013 meeting. To the north and west are properties of agricultural uses zoned A-20 and commercial 
uses zoned CS. The uses of properties in the area prime this property for many types of compatible uses; 
it may be found that the RR-5 zone will suit the area well, until the County can provide a re-created 
“Town Center” zone. (See Exhibit B) 
 
When evaluating a rezone, it is critical to evaluate the potential for land use changes that the proposed 



 

Page 15 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

zone permits and/or conditionally permits. However unlikely, it is appropriate to evaluate the rezone as 
if the property is being used to the fullest extent allowable by County land use ordinance. A comparison 
of the differences in the allowed uses between the proposed RR-5 zone and the existing CD zone is a 
useful method to determine the potential change the rezone may have on the area. See Exhibit C for 
this comparison. 
 
The following eight criteria should be evaluated when determining the impact of the potential rezone: 
 

1. Potential density: The amount of land currently in the CD zone is 2.45 acres. The CD 
zone allows a mixture of residential and commercial uses, with a potential for residential 
development of 16 units per acre, or approximately 87.68 equivalent residential units 
(ERU’s) on this property. A 5.48 acre zone change from CD to RR-5 could result in a total 
density of 1.096 residential units.  The potential rezone would decrease the overall 
density of the property by 86.584 units.   

2. Access: The proposed rezone property has roughly 657 feet of frontage along Old 
Highway Road, formerly known as U.S. Highway 30-S. Isolating only frontage as review 
criteria, there could potentially be two single family lots developed along the frontage of 
the road, given that the minimum frontage in the RR-5 zone is 250 feet. 

3. Circulation: Old Highway Road is a thoroughfare that provides connections to and 
passed the subject property and other public streets in the County. Circulation to the 
property does not appear to be an issue.   

4. Culinary Water Resources: Private culinary water systems serve the culinary water 
needs of the area. There is also the option for private wells supposing the property is 
large enough to support the required wellhead protection zone(s). The applicants will 
need to provide indication from a local water company of their willingness to serve the 
property or provide water right information, well log information, and Health 
Department approval if the property will be served by a private well prior to 
development on the property. 

5. Sewer: The property falls within the boundaries of the Mountain Green Sewer 
Improvement District.  They will be required to seek the district’s approval to connect to 
the system prior to developing. 

6. Fire Protection: The property is not in the Wildland Urban Interface Area, so a specific 
fire protection plan is not required. If/when it is developed it may still be required to 
have certain fire suppression as required by the local Fire Official. 

7. Topographic Features: The property has a very mild grade.  It was originally graded 
some years ago to provide parking for the 2002 Winter Olympics. Topography does not 
seem to be a concern for potential future development. 

8. Geology: The property appears to be in the “Qa[p]” geologic unit designation, which is 
not listed in MCC §8-5I as a hazardous unit. 



 

Page 16 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

 
Further Considerations.  The property was rezoned from RR-1/A-20 to the CD zone in 2008 by ordinance 
CO-08-04. This rezone came at the request of a land owner, Tyler Quigley. Staff have conducted 
thorough research of this zone change because it appears the requester of the change did not own the 
property. In fact, one of the owner’s of the property, Bart Smith, has recently indicated to the County 
that he had no idea that the rezone had ever occurred and suggested that it may have occurred by 
mistake.  
 
It is difficult to tell based on previous Staff’s records in the Planning and Development Services 
Department what property was intended for this rezone, and upon review of meeting minutes it seems 
possible that the property intended to be rezoned to the CD zone is on the corner of Trapper’s Loop 
Road and Old Highway road, a property owned by Tyler Quigley. However, the County Council signed 
and executed ordinance CO-08-04, which provided a legal description that rezoned Mr. Smith’s property 
(the subject Watersprings, LLC property), and not Mr. Quigley’s property.  
 
Noticing. The MCC 8-3-3 requires a public hearing for a rezone when the County Council’s hears the 
rezone request. State law 17-27a-205 requires the first public hearing (whatever body is hearing it) to be 
noticed on the County’s website and published in a newspaper of general circulation in the area at least 
10 calendar days before the public hearing, and mailed to the property owner affected by the change, as 
well as adjacent property owners within parameters specified by the county (which is 1000 feet in 
Morgan County). As part of the application process the applicant was responsible for identifying these 
property owners and for providing the County with a mailing list. The County sent notices to all 
individuals on the mailing list. 
 
This public hearing notice was posted at a minimum within the State and County requirements in the 
following manner: 

1. Posted to the County website within 10 days prior to this meeting. 

2. Published in the Morgan County News within 10 days prior to this meeting. 

3. Mailed to property owners within 1000 feet of the affected property. 

4. Mailed to the property owner. 

5. Posted in the foyer of the Morgan County Courthouse. 

 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that if the Planning Commission can make the following findings for approval of the 
Morgan County/Watersprings, LLC rezone that it do so based on the following findings:  
 

1. Because of ambiguous, vague or contradictory provisions, the CD Zone has proven 



 

Page 17 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

impractical to appropriately administer. 

2. Because of the aforementioned flaws in the CD zone, it is found that the CD zone does 
not comply with the “Town Center” designation in the 2010 Morgan County General 
Plan, in that “Town Center projects should be designed to provide maximum 
compatibility with surrounding land uses.  Increased aesthetic and architectural design 
requirements and focus on streetscape creation are paramount to the development of a 
Town Center area”.  

3. By removing the CD designation from the property the County can more appropriately 
facilitate the re-creation of a new “Town Center” zone. 

4. By rezoning to the RR-5 zone the County is preserving the property owner’s potential to 
develop under the terms of the RR-5 zone by providing a zone most compatible with the 
current property configuration and uses, and other current uses in the vicinity.   

 
MODEL MOTION   
 
Sample Motion for a Positive Recommendation – “I move we forward a positive recommendation to the 
County Council for the Morgan County/Watersprings, LLC Rezone Request, application #13.059, 
rezoning approximately 5.48 acres of property at approximately 4960 West Old Highway Road from CD 
to RR-5, based on the findings listed in the staff report dated June 19, 2013, and as modified by the 
findings below:” 
 

1. List any additional findings… 

 
Sample Motion for a Negative Recommendation – “I move we forward a negative recommendation to 
the County Council for the Morgan County/Watersprings, LLC Rezone Request, application #13.059, 
rezoning approximately 5.48 acres of property at approximately 4960 West Old Highway Road from CD 
to RR-5, based on the following findings: 
 

1. The current condition of the area does not merit changed or changing conditions. The 
area is not yet ready for the rezone request. 

2. That the proposal does not conform to the Morgan County 2010 General Plan Future 
Land Use Map (as amended). 

3. List any additional findings… 

 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
Exhibit A: Morgan County Future Land Use Map 
Exhibit B: Current Zoning and Aerial Picture Showing Uses 
Exhibit C: Comparison of Land Use Permission Differences between CD and RR-5 



 

Page 18 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

Exhibit B – Public Hearing/Discussion Jaques Rezone 
 
 

Planning and Development Services 
 

STAFF REPORT 

June 19, 2013 

To: Morgan County Planning Commission 
Business Date:  6/27/13 
 

Prepared By: Ronda Kippen, Planning Technician 
  Charles Ewert, Planning Director 
 
Re: County Initiated Rezone of Jaques Property 
Application No.: 13.060 
Applicant: Morgan County 
Project Location: 5190 West Old Highway Road 
Zoning: CD 
Acreage: 2.45 Acres 
Request: County initiated rezone of 2.45 acres of property located at 5190 West Old Highway 

Road from CD to RR-1. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The County Council has directed Staff to repeal the Central Development (CD) Zone due to ambiguous, 
vague or contradictory provisions that make the CD zone impractical to appropriately administer.  Staff 
is proposing to rezone the residential property owned by Dee Jaques located at 5190 West Old Highway 
Road.  Staff is recommending rezoning the subject property from the current CD zone to the RR-1 zone 
to ensure a zone most compatible with the current configuration and uses of the property, and other 
uses in the vicinity.  By rezoning the property to this zone the County will maximize the preservation of 
the land owner’s existing and established land use rights.   Once the Morgan County Code has been 
revised regarding commercial zones and uses, the County may move forward with a more appropriate 
zone that will help facilitate the creation of the “Town Center” area that has been identified in the 2010 
Morgan County General Plan.  This rezone is only intended to as a “place holder” until the County can 
re-create a better “Town Center” zone.  
 
The property that has been identified to be rezoned to RR-1 is residential property adjacent to a variety 
of zones including agricultural, residential and commercial. In the event that there is a use that has been 
legally established prior to the County’s amendment to the zoning map; that use will be allowed to 
continue as long as it is not expanded or abandoned as defined by the County’s nonconforming use 
chapter Morgan County Code (MCC) 8-7-5. The recommended zone was selected in an attempt of 
creating as little non-conformity as possible.  
 
Staff are advising that because administration of the CD zone has proven detrimental to the County, 



 

Page 19 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

rezoning the property to any other existing zone will help the County better comply with the goals and 
objectives of the 2010 General Plan by providing the County time to re-create a new “Town Center” 
zone. Staff are not recommending a rezone to any other commercial zone at this time because of 
another directive from the County Council to modify all commercial zones to create more commercial 
development friendly processes, but because we are only in the preliminary stages in providing such 
modifications we cannot provide any concrete verification of how other commercial zones will affect the 
surrounding area. This recommendation is a conservative approach by staff to provide the Planning 
Commission with results that are verifiable by steering clear of the current unknowns of the ongoing 
commercial code re-write.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Current Uses and Lot Configuration. The current use of the property is primarily residential. It has one 
residence on it and several accessory buildings. The lot is generally rectangular in shape, with 
approximately 200 feet of frontage along Old Highway Road. It appears from aerial photography that 
the current residence is setback from property boundaries the minimum of 15 feet as required by the 
proposed zone.  
 
Planning Commission Responsibility. Pursuant to MCC 8-3-3, the Planning Commission shall review the 
[zoning map] amendment application and certify its recommendations concerning the proposed 
amendment to the governing body within forty five (45) days from receipt of the amendment 
application in a regularly scheduled meeting. The Planning Commission shall recommend adoption of a 
proposed amendment only where the following findings are made: 
 

3. The proposed amendment is in accord with the master plan of the County. 
4. Changed or changing conditions make the proposed amendment reasonably necessary to carry 

out the purposes of this title. 
 
Staff are advising that because administration of the CD zone has proven detrimental to the County, 
rezoning the property to any other existing zone will help the County better comply with the goals and 
objectives of the 2010 General Plan by providing the County time to re-create a new “Town Center” 
zone whilst ensuring no more development proposals are presented under requirements of the CD 
zone; and it is with this assertion that Staff believe the Planning Commission may find that the rezone 
does comply with the intent of the 2010 General Plan. Staff also advise that because the Council 
requested the repeal of the CD zone that the Planning Commission may find that changing conditions do 
indeed exist.  
 
General Plan. The first finding that the Planning Commission must make in order to make a positive 
recommendation for this rezone is that it is in accord with the master plan of the County. The 2010 
General Plan and accompanied Future Land Use Map (as amended) is the County’s master plan. The 
Future Land Use Map identifies the area in question as a “Town Center” (see Exhibit A). The following 
are excerpts from the plan that may be relevant in evaluating this request (italics added for emphasis): 
 

One municipality (Morgan) and six village centers are located in Morgan County; Mountain 



 

Page 20 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

Green, Peterson, Enterprise, Stoddard, Croydon, and Porterville. Most of these areas have 
identified future growth areas. The majority of future development in Morgan County is 
anticipated to occur in or near these areas. (Pg. 5-7) 

 
Both the text of the General Plan and the Future Land Use Map must be considered when making 
decisions about future development or redevelopment. (Pg. 7) 
 
Town Center projects should be designed to provide maximum compatibility with surrounding 
land uses.  Increased aesthetic and architectural design requirements and focus on streetscape 
creation are paramount to the development of a Town Center area. (Pg. 12) 

 
The CD zone anticipates that the Planning Commission and County Council has more discretionary ability 
to provide additional administrative development requirements to obtain optimal aesthetic controls in 
the CD zone than are actually enumerated in the code; however, administrative law does not support 
this. Such application of administrative discretion has resulted in cases of arbitrary decision making. In 
other words, the attorneys have told us that when it comes to administering the law we can’t simply 
“make it up as we go.”   
 
Thus, it appears that the Planning Commission may find that the proposed rezone may conform to the 
intent of the County’s master planning efforts because the practical administration of the CD zone has 
inconsistencies that conflicting with the desired “Town Center” designation in the Mountain Green area, 
and should be removed from properties that are not currently vested in its rules.  
 
Zoning.  The Planning Commission should evaluate the request based on the potential changes in use 
and compatibility with existing conditions. To begin the evaluation, it is important to know the purpose 
of each zone and how they relate to each other.  
 
The purpose of the CD zone is as follows:  
The central development district zone is established to stimulate economic development by providing a 
unique planning environment for commercial and office development.  This district encourages creative 
development and site design for mixed use commercial, office and residential uses within “planned 
commercial centers” and is appropriately reserved for use within town and resort centers only.   
 
Despite the good intentions of this purpose, the actual administration of the CD zone has not yielded the 
best results due to administrative requirements that do not give the County the discretionary authority 
that the CD zone was intended to contemplate. The type of discretionary authority the CD contemplates 
reflects legislative authority, not administrative.  
 
The purposes of the RR-1 zone are as follows: 

 To promote and preserve in appropriate areas conditions favorable to large lot 
family life; 

 Maintaining a rural atmosphere; 

 The keeping of limited numbers of animals and fowl; and 

 Reduced requirements for public utilities, services and infrastructure. 



 

Page 21 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

 These districts are intended to be primarily residential in character and protected 
from encroachment by commercial and industrial uses. 

 
The sizes and uses of properties adjacent to the subject property vary. To the east of the property is Old 
Farm Market and has been zoned CS.  Located south and east (across Old Highway Road) of the 
property, there are established commercial uses located in the Commercial Highway zone, a small area 
zoned RR-1 and A-20 as well as the Mountain Green Village PUD property that has been zoned Central 
Development, the development agreement for which was approved by the County Council in their June 
18, 2013 meeting. To the north and west are properties of agricultural uses zoned A-20 and residential 
uses. The uses of other properties in the area prime this property for many types of compatible uses; it 
may be found that the RR-1 zone will suit the area well, until the County can provide a re-created “Town 
Center” zone. (See Exhibit B) 
 
When evaluating a rezone, it is critical to evaluate the potential for land use changes that the proposed 
zone permits and/or conditionally permits. However unlikely, it is appropriate to evaluate the rezone as 
if the property is being used to the fullest extent allowable by County land use ordinance. A comparison 
of the differences in the allowed uses between the proposed RR-1 zone and the existing CD zone is a 
useful method to determine the potential change the rezone may have on the area. See Exhibit C for 
this comparison. 
 
The following eight criteria should be evaluated when determining the impact of the potential rezone: 
 

9. Potential density: The amount of land currently in the CD zone is 2.45 acres. The CD 
zone allows a mixture of residential and commercial uses, with a potential for residential 
development of 16 units per acre, or approximately 39.2 equivalent residential units 
(ERU’s) on this property. A 2.45 acre zone change from CD to RR-1 could result in a total 
density of 2.45 residential units.  The potential rezone would increase the overall 
density of the property by 36.75 units.   

10. Access: The proposed rezone property has 200 feet of frontage along Old Highway Road, 
formerly known as U.S. Highway 30-S. Isolating only frontage as review criteria, there is 
only sufficient frontage for one single family lot given that the minimum frontage in the 
RR-1 zone is 200 feet. 

11. Circulation: Old Highway Road is a thoroughfare that provides connections to and 
passed the subject property and other public streets in the County. Circulation to the 
property does not appear to be an issue.   

12. Culinary Water Resources: Private culinary water systems serve the culinary water 
needs of the area. There is also the option for private wells supposing the property is 
large enough to support the required wellhead protection zone(s). The applicants will 
need to provide indication from a local water company of their willingness to serve the 
property or provide water right information, well log information, and Health 
Department approval if the property will be served by a private well prior to 



 

Page 22 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

development on the property. 

13. Sewer: The property falls within the boundaries of the Mountain Green Sewer 
Improvement District.  They will be required to seek the district’s approval to connect to 
the system prior to developing. 

14. Fire Protection: The property is not in the Wildland Urban Interface Area, so a specific 
fire protection plan is not required. If/when it is developed it may still be required to 
have certain fire suppression as required by the local Fire Official. 

15. Topographic Features: The property is fairly flat.  Topography does not seem to be a 
concern for potential future development. 

16. Geology: The property appears to be split in between the “Qh” and the “Qa[p]” geologic 
unit designation, which is not listed in MCC §8-5I as a hazardous unit. 

Further Considerations.  The property was rezoned from RR-1/A-20 to the CD zone in 2003 by ordinance 
CO-03-14. This rezone came at the request of the land owner, Dee Jaques. Mr. Jaques had the desire to 
rezone his property to a more marketable commercial zone in order to boost the value and potential of 
his lot. He paid an application fee and the request was subject to a full review by staff, the Planning 
Commission, and the County Council. However, to date Mr. Jaques has not acted on any of the 
development or use rights of the CD zone.  
 
Mr. Jaques has contacted staff about this proposed rezone and has expressed his opposition to it. He 
still has a desire to keep the property in a commercial zone for marketability purposes, and indicated to 
staff his plans of trying to sell it this 2013 summer season. He is desirous that if any change is going to be 
made to the zone of his property that is reflects the same zone as the Old Farm Market on the lot just 
west of his lot. The Old Farm Market is in the commercial shopping (CS) zone.  
 
Noticing. The MCC 8-3-3 requires a public hearing for a rezone when the County Council’s hears the 
rezone request. State law 17-27a-205 requires the first public hearing (whatever body is hearing it) to be 
noticed on the County’s website and published in a newspaper of general circulation in the area at least 
10 calendar days before the public hearing, and mailed to the property owner affected by the change, as 
well as adjacent property owners within parameters specified by the county (which is 1000 feet in 
Morgan County). As part of the application process the applicant was responsible for identifying these 
property owners and for providing the County with a mailing list. The County sent notices to all 
individuals on the mailing list. 
 
This public hearing notice was posted at a minimum within the State and County requirements in the 
following manner: 

1. Posted to the County website within 10 days prior to this meeting. 
2. Published in the Morgan County News within 10 days prior to this meeting. 
3. Mailed to property owners within 1000 feet of the affected property. 
4. Mailed to the property owner. 
5. Posted in the foyer of the Morgan County Courthouse. 

 



 

Page 23 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that if the Planning Commission can make the following findings for approval of the 
County initiated rezone of the Jaques property, that it do so based on the following findings:  
 

1. Because of ambiguous, vague or contradictory provisions, the CD Zone has proven 
impractical to appropriately administer. 

2. Because of the aforementioned flaws in the CD zone, it is found that the CD zone does 
not comply with the “Town Center” designation in the 2010 Morgan County General 
Plan, in that “Town Center projects should be designed to provide maximum 
compatibility with surrounding land uses.  Increased aesthetic and architectural design 
requirements and focus on streetscape creation are paramount to the development of 
a Town Center area”.  

3. By removing the CD designation from the property the County can more appropriately 
facilitate the re-creation of a new “Town Center” zone. 

4. By rezoning to the RR-1 zone the County is preserving the property owner’s potential 
to develop under the terms of the RR-1 zone by providing a zone most compatible 
with the current property configuration and uses, and other current uses in the 
vicinity.   

 
MODEL MOTION   
 
Sample Motion for a Positive Recommendation – “I move we forward a positive recommendation to the 
County Council for the County Initiated Rezone Request of the Jaques Property, application #13.060, 
rezoning approximately 2.45 acres of property at 5190 West Old Highway Road from CD to RR-1, based 
on the findings listed in the staff report dated June 19, 2013, and as modified by the findings below:” 
 

1. List any additional findings… 
 
Sample Motion for a Negative Recommendation – “I move we forward a negative recommendation to 
the County Council for the County Initiated Rezone Request of the Jaques Property, application #13.060, 
rezoning approximately 2.45 acres of property at 5190 West Old Highway Road from CD to RR-1, based 
on the following findings: 
 

1. The current condition of the area does not merit changed or changing conditions. The 
area is not yet ready for the rezone request. 

2. That the proposal does not conform to the Morgan County 2010 General Plan Future 
Land Use Map (as amended). 

3. List any additional findings… 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
Exhibit A: Morgan County Future Land Use Map 



 

Page 24 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

Exhibit B: Current Zoning and Aerial Picture Showing Uses 
Exhibit C: Comparison of Land Use Permission Differences between CD and RR-1 
 

  



 

Page 25 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

Exhibit D –Public Hearing/Discussion/Decision:  Johnson Future Land Use Map Amendment 

 

 
 

Planning and Development Services 
STAFF REORT 
June 21, 2013 

To: Morgan County Planning Commission 
Business Date:  6/27/13 
 

Prepared By: Charles Ewert, Planning Director 
 
Re: Matt Johnson Future Land Use Map Amendment Request  
Application No.: 13.046 
Applicant: Matt Johnson 
Project Location: 780 W. Surrey Lane 
Zoning: RR-5 
Acreage: 3.23 Acres 
Request: Future Land Use Map Amendment of 3.23 acres of property located at 780 W Surrey 

Lane from the Ranch Residential 5 designation to the Rural Residential/Agriculture 
designation. 

 
SUMMARY 
 
This application is a request for the County to change the future land use map for a 3.23 acre property in 
the Milton area. The property is currently a subdivision lot, lot seven of the Surrey Lanes Estates PRUD 
Subdivision (see Exhibit C). 
 
The lots in the Surrey Lanes Estates PRUD were created with the PRUD subdivision tool that the County 
repealed in 2010. Each lot has a prohibited building area on the rear of the lots. This “no build” area is 
restricting the applicant form erecting an accessory building in his desired location on the property. The 
applicant’s ultimate goal is to amend the subdivision plat to amend the building restriction.  
 
The plat cannot be amended at this time because of the PRUD ordinance’s repeal. If a PRUD ordinance 
currently existed then the County would have criteria from which to evaluate a plat amendment. 
Without the flexibility that was a given to the original developer through the PRUD ordinance, which 
allowed additional density than would have otherwise been allowed in the RR-5 zone, the applicant’s 
only option is to amend the plat in a manner consistent with currently adopted standard subdivision 
procedures and requirements. The repeal of the PRUD zone made the applicant’s lot non-conforming in 
size and frontage for a traditional subdivision lot in the RR-5 zone. There are a few other PRUD’s in the 
County that can still be amended because they are vested in the terms of a development agreement, 
but Surrey Lanes Estates PRUD and others that do not have vesting for changes or modifications under 



 

Page 26 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

the old PRUD ordinance cannot be amended under those same terms.  
 
Thus, because the applicant only has a 3.23 acre lot in the 5 acre minimum zone, in order to facilitate a 
traditional plat amendment he must petition the County for a zone change to bring the acreage of his 
property into compliance with existing requirements. Because the Future Land Use Map does not 
support a zone change the applicant has chosen to request this Future Land Use Map Amendment in 
order to better facilitate a future zone change request.  
 
The request is to change the front 1.101 acres of his property to the Rural Residential designation listed 
in the General Plan, which will support a future RR-1 zoning district, and change the rear 2.124 acres of 
his property to the Agricultural designation, which will support the A-20 zoning district. These zones 
executed on the current size and configuration of the lot will not yield the potential for additional 
dwelling units. 
 
Staff do not recommend the singular change of the applicants property alone, without making greater 
consideration of the future land uses in the area, and how they effect other lots in the Surrey Lanes 
Estates PRUD. If the Planning Commission finds that a future land use map amendment is merited for 
the applicant’s property, then staff recommend changing the future land use designation for all 
properties in the Surrey Lanes Estates PRUD subdivision thereby enabling other lot owners to later 
change their zoning designation and ultimately amend the subdivision in a manner consistent with the 
zoning.  
 
This request and the complications herein is an unintended effect of the prior PRUD ordinance.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
General Plan. The current future land use map indicates that the area is not a growth center and 
recommends no changes from the current Ranch Residential 5 designation (see Exhibit A).  
 
The Ranch Residential 5 designation is intended to: 
 

The Ranch Residential 5 designation provides for the same uses as Ranch Residential 10, but 
allows for residential density of up to one unit per 5 acres. 

 
And the Ranch Residential 10 designation says: 

 
The Ranch Residential designation accommodates rural large lot development with generous 
distances to streets and between residential dwelling units and a viable semi-rural character 
setting. Livestock privileges are a part of this character. Areas in this category are generally 
larger lots with accessory structures that may be used for livestock. The residential density is a 
maximum of 1 unit per 10 acres. 

 
The applicant is requesting the Rural Residential designation on the front portion of his lot and the 
Agricultural designation on the rear. He is proposing this so that when he proposes a rezone he is giving 
the County a sense of security that he does not intend to increase the density of the community.  



 

Page 27 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

 
The Rural Residential designation is intended to: 
 

The Rural Residential category designation accommodates semi-rural large lot development, 
with generous distances to streets and between residential dwelling units in a viable semi-rural 
character setting. Residential density in rural residential areas is a maximum of 1 unit per acre. 

 
And the Agricultural designation is intended to: 
 

This designation identifies areas of existing agricultural land uses. The purpose of this land use 
designation is to support viable agricultural operations in Morgan County, while allowing for 
incidental large-lot residential and other uses. The residential density in this category is up to 1 
unit per 20 acres. 

 
Zoning.  The current zone of the property is RR-5 (see Exhibit B). The problem this applicat is attempting 
to resolve is that his lot is a smaller size than is allowed by the zone; a byproduct of the old PRUD 
ordinance. The ordinance that enabled the developer the benefit of creating lots smaller than 
traditionally allowed in the zone is now standing in the way of the resulting lot owner from receiving 
certain benefits of the zone which are generally allowed by conforming lots in the same zone.  
 
In making final determination on this application the Planning Commission should consider the 
implications that a developer claimed benefit in execution of the development has now turned to a 
landowner’s irreversible restriction on a use, and the policy considerations that should be merited in 
situations such as these.  
 
The following criteria should be evaluated when determining the impact of the potential future land use 
map amendment: 
 

17. Potential density: The current designation plans for five acre lots, but there are currently 
lots smaller than five acres in the area. Given tradition subdivision and zoning rules the 
3.23 acre property could support 0.64 dwelling units if zoned RR-5. With the proposed 
re-designation and assuming a rezone is executed, the potential resulting density could 
be 1.21.  

18. Access: The property is accessible via Surrey Lane, a private road that was not built to 
County Standards. The former PRUD did not require private roads to be built to County 
standards.  

19. Circulation: Surrey Lane is a dead end road that is 1,000 feet long, the maximum length 
allowed by current code.  

20. Culinary Water Resources: Currently, a private well supports the property. 

21. Sewer: The property is supported by a septic system.  

22. Fire Protection: The property is not in the Wildland Urban Interface Area, so a specific 



 

Page 28 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

fire protection plan is not required. 

23. Topographic Features: The property is fairly flat. Topography does not seem to be a 
concern for potential future development. 

 
Noticing. The MCC 8-3-3 requires a public hearing for a rezone when the County Council’s hears the 
rezone request. State law 17-27a-205 requires the first public hearing (whatever body is hearing it) to be 
noticed on the County’s website and published in a newspaper of general circulation in the area at least 
10 calendar days before the public hearing, and mailed to the property owner affected by the change, as 
well as adjacent property owners within parameters specified by the county (which is 1000 feet in 
Morgan County). As part of the application process the applicant was responsible for identifying these 
property owners and for providing the County with a mailing list. The County sent notices to all 
individuals on the mailing list. 
 
This public hearing notice was posted at a minimum within the State and County requirements in the 
following manner: 

6. Posted to the County website within 10 days prior to this meeting. 

7. Published in the Morgan County News within 10 days prior to this meeting. 

8. Mailed to property owners within 1000 feet of the affected property. 

9. Mailed to the property owner. 

10. Posted in the foyer of the Morgan County Courthouse. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that if the Planning Commission is in favor of making this change that they direct staff 
to study possible changes for all lots in the Surrey Lanes Estates Subdivision for the same change prior to 
making final recommendation of any future land use map change in the area to the County Council, so 
that the change to the future land use map can better reflect a community purpose rather than an 
individual desire.  
 
Staff recommend that if the Planning Commission is inclined to make a negative recommendation of the 
Johnson Future Land Use Map Amendment request that it do so based on the following findings:  
 

1. That the request does not provide for a community planning effort that is supported by 
the 2010 General Plan.  

2. That the use of the PRUD ordinance to create this lot resulted in a tradeoff in 
requirements that the developer benefited from, and that a land use map amendment 
is an inappropriate method of resolve certain unintended resulting consequences of the 
use of the PRUD.   



 

Page 29 of 29 

Morgan County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 27, 2013 - unapproved070213 
 

3. That the landowner can resolve the nonconformity by acquiring additional acreage such 
that the property may be amended to comply with the zone and current subdivision 
regulations.  

4. That there is validity in the current size and configuration of the required open space 
that has been provided by the building restrictions of the Surrey Lanes Estates PRUD.  

 
MODEL MOTION   
 
Sample Motion for a Positive Recommendation – “I move we forward a positive recommendation to the 
County Council for the Matt Johnson Future Land Use Map Amendment, application #13.046, as 
presented in the June 21, 2013 staff report based on the findings below:” 
 

2. List any additional findings… 

 
Sample Motion for a Negative Recommendation – “I move we forward a negative recommendation to 
the County Council for the Matt Johnson Future Land Use Map Amendment, application #13.046, with 
the findings of the staff recommendation in the June 21, 2013 Staff Report with the additional findings 
below: 
 

4. List additional findings… 

 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
Exhibit A: Morgan County Future Land Use Map 
Exhibit B: Current Zoning and Aerial Picture Showing Uses 
Exhibit C: Surrey Lanes Estates PRUD Plat 

 


	02 - August 8, 2013 PC Agenda
	05 - 7-26-13 Tifie CUP Staff Report with Exhibits
	STAFF REPORT

	06 - 8-2-13 Little Horn -- Staff Report W EXHIBITS1
	07 - 08 -- 7-24-13 -- Rollins 4a and 4b -- Staff Report W EXHIBITS
	09 - 7-31-13 -- Rollins 5 -- Staff Report W EXHIBITS
	10 - 8-2-13 -- Rollins 6 --  Staff Report W EXHIBITS
	12 - 8-2-13 -- Text Amd Non Conforming Lots -- Staff Report FINAL
	14 -June 27, 2013 PCM minutes unapproved 062713PKT(2)



